
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 3, 2024 - 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length.
If you would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To
Address Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark
glasses) during meetings and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.
 

           
(1) ROLL CALL   
 

(2) INVOCATION   
 

(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

(4) PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS   
 

(a) Proclaim April 2024 as Fair Housing Month for the City of Texas City.
 

(b) Proclaiming April Ninth as "409 Day" in Texas City
 
(5) REPORTS   
 

(a) Recreation Programs (Recreation and Tourism)
 

(b) Community Development Annual Report (Community Development)
 
(6) PUBLIC HEARING   
 

(a) Heron's Landing Development, LLC requests approval of amendments to the Heron's
Landing Planned Unit Development (PUD) District, Masterplan and Development
Agreement.

 
(7) PRELIMINARY ZONING APPROVAL   
 



(a) Consider and take action on the PUD Application, Masterplan, and Development
Agreement for Heron’s Landing Subdivision. Located north of Swallows Meadow
Subdivision and west of Pelican Harbour Subdivision.

 
(8) PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

(9) CONSENT AGENDA   
 

(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for March 20, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)
 

(b) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-053, approving the consent to
annexation of Heron's Landing Subdivision Section 3 into GCMUD 79. (Transportation
and Planning)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-054, approving the consent to

annexation of Heron's Landing Section 4 into GC MUD 79. (Transportation and Planning)
 

(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-055, awarding a contract for Bid No.
2024-453 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23. (Public Works)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-056, approving the Amended and

Restated Development Agreement between the City of Texas City and Heron's Landing
Development, LLC. (Transportation and Planning)

 
(f) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-057, awarding a contract for Bid No.

2024-452 Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21. (Public Works)
 

(g) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-058, awarding Request for Proposal
No. 2024-451 to Galveston LNG Bunker Port LLC and authorizing the Mayor to enter
into a long-term lease for certain real property commonly known as Shoal Point. (Legal)

 
(h) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-059, awarding a contract for Bid No.

2024-004 Delivered Hot and Warm Mix Asphalt Annual Contract. (Public Works)
 

(i) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-047, adopting various policies and
procedures related to Civil Rights and Community Development Block Grant-Mitigation
(CDBG-MIT). (Community Development)

 
(j) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-048, adopting a waiver valuation policy

for General Land Office (GLO) Grants that require involuntary property acquisitions.
(Community Development)

 
(10) REGULAR ITEMS   
 



(a) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-12, abandoning the entire 15’ wide
alley adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of Block 135 of Texas City Second Division
in Galveston County. Located off of 6th Avenue North between 4th Street North and 5th
Street North. (Transportation and Planning)

 
(11) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS   
 

(12) MAYOR'S COMMENTS   
 

(13) ADJOURNMENT   
 

NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER
IS STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
NOTICE: The City of Texas City will furnish free transportation to handicapped individuals via a 4-door
sedan for anyone wishing to attend the City Commission meetings.  Call 948-3111, City Secretary's
Office before noon on Monday preceding the meeting to make arrangements.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS
POSTED ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, AT A PLACE CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND
ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON MARCH 29, 2024, PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO POSTED
CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF SAID
MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY
  



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Proclaim April 2024 Fair Housing Month
Submitted For: Titilayo Smith, Community Development/ Grant Admin 
Submitted By: Titilayo Smith, Community Development/ Grant Admin
Department: Community Development/ Grant Admin

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Proclaim April 2024 as Fair Housing Month for the City of Texas City.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
April is designated as Fair Housing Month by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) to highlight the Fair Housing Act, which is the landmark civil rights law
signed by President Lyndon B. Johnson on April 11, 1968, that made discrimination in
housing transactions unlawful. The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing
because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex (including gender identity and sexual
orientation), disability, and familial status. During April 2024, the City of Texas City,
Community Development Department, will acknowledge Fair Housing Month by holding
events and conducting education and outreach to the citizens of Texas City from landlords to
tenants, young and old.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended by the Director of Community Development & Grants Administration that
the Commission proclaim April 2024 as Fair Housing Month in the City of Texas City.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Proclamation Verbiage 



WHEREAS, The Fair Housing Act, enacted on April 11, 1968, enshrined into federal law the goal of  

eliminating racial segregation and ending housing discrimination in the United States; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in housing based on race, color, religion,  

sex, familial status, national origin, and disability, and commits recipients of federal funding to  

affirmatively further fair housing in their communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City is committed to the mission and intent of Congress to provide fair and 

equal housing opportunities for all. Our social fabric, the economy, health, and environment are 

strengthened in diverse, inclusive communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City completed an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing in February 2024 

and concluded that more than fifty-five years after the passage of the Fair Housing Act, discrimination 

persists here in Texas City, and 

 

W HEREAS, Acts of housing discrimination and barriers to equal housing opportunity are repugnant  

to a common sense of decency and fairness. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Texas City, Texas does hereby declare the month of  

April 2024 as Fair Housing Month and do hereby urge all the citizens of this locality to become aware of 

and support the Fair Housing Law. 

 

In testimony whereof, witness my hand and the Seal of the City of Texas City, this the 3rd day of April, 

2024. 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (b)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Proclaiming April Ninth as "409 Day" in Texas City
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Proclaiming April Ninth as "409 Day" in Texas City

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The date April 9 is 4/09. What better day to celebrate Texas City and all the great things about
our community in the 409 area code? Throughout the day businesses, schools, City
departments, and facilities will showcase their 409 pride.

RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (a)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Recreation Programs (Recreation and Tourism)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



2024
RECREATION 
PROGRAMS
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
APRIL 3 ,  2024 



2

SPRING SPECIAL EVENTS 
(MARCH – MAY)

S t .  P a t r i c k ’ s  D a y ,  L i t t l e  L e a g u e  &
Yo u t h  S o f t b a l l  P a r a d e
• S a t u r d a y  b e f o r e  S t .  P a t r i c k ’ s  D a y  

S p r i n g  B r e a k  C a m p
• W e e k  o f  T C I S D  S p r i n g  B r e a k  

A r t  F e s t i v a l
• J u r i e d  Yo u t h  &  A d u l t  S h o w  h e l d  i n  M a r c h

E a s t e r  E g g  H u n t
• W e d n e s d a y  b e f o r e  E a s t e r
 
C i n c o  D e  M a y o  P a r a d e  a n d  F e s t i v a l  
• S a t u r d a y  b e f o r e  M a y  5 t h  



SUMMER SPECIAL EVENTS (JUNE – AUGUST) 
Kid Fish at Carver Park 

• June 8th

Juneteenth Celebrations 

• Gospel Festival, June 7th 

• A Night of Painting, June 8th 

• Poetry Slam, June 14th 

• Parade & Celebration in the Park, June 15th 

• Golf Tournament, June 18th 

3

Friday Family Movie Night at Nessler Park 

• June 28th 

• July 26th 

Friday Family Movie Night at Carver Park 

• July 12th 

Independence Day Celebration 

• Thursday, July 4th 

• Parade at 10am 

• Band Performs at 7pm

• Fireworks at dusk 



SUMMER CAMP
Locations: 

• Nessler Civic Center (Ages 6 – 8)

• Carver Center (Ages 6 – 12)

• Lowry Fitness Center (Ages 9 – 12)

Parent’s Open House 

• Information on summer programs and meet summer staff 

4

SANDERS/VINCENT CENTER
• Summer Food Program 

• Activity Room 

• Open Gym 

• Structured Recreation programming for young adults (Ages 13 – 18)

SUMMER RECREATION PROGRAMS
• Tennis Camp 

• Summer Track

• Jr. Golf Camp  

• MAKOS Swim Team

• Summer Swim Lessons  



5

Operating Hours 
10am – 6pm

Weekends Only: 
May 4th – 26th 

Weekdays: (Tues. – Sun.)
May 28th  – Aug 4th

Weekends Only:  
Aug. 10th  – Sept. 1st

NESSLER FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER 
Holiday Operating Schedule: 
(Open 10am – 6pm) 

May 27th – Memorial Day
June 19th – Juneteenth 
July 4th – Independence Day 
Sept. 2nd – Labor Day 
(Last Day of Season) 

Private Pool Party Reservations 
6:30pm – 8:30pm 
(Thur. – Sun) 



AUTUMN/WINTER SPECIAL EVENTS 

BREAST 
CANCER WALK
Saturday, 
October 5th 

HALLOWEEN 
FESTIVAL 
Saturday, 
October 26th 

CHRISTMAS 
PARADE 
Thursday, 
December 5th 

SNOW 
SPECTACULAR 
Saturday, 
December 14th 

MAYOR’S TREE 
LIGHTING 
Saturday, 
November 30th

6



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (b)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Community Development Annual Report (Community Development)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



Community 
Development

PY’ 22 Annual Report
Presented by:
Titilayo Smith
Director, Community Development & Grants Administration



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report

The Community Development 
Department is currently operating 
under the 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan 
and the PY’ 2022 Annual Plan.



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report

2020-2025 

Consolidated Plan 
Goals:

• Expand Public Facilities

• Modernize/Repair Public Housing 
Buildings

• Provide Supportive Services & 
Employment for Youth

• Prevent Slum & Blight

• Improve Facades

• Housing Reconstruction

• Improve Condition of Housing Stock



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report

PY’ 22 Annual Action 
Plan Goals:

• Provide Housing Assistance.
• Provide Supportive Services & 

Employment for Youth
• Housing Reconstruction
• Improve Condition of Housing 

Stock
• Improve Presentation of Low- to 

Mod-Areas



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Provide Housing Assistance
 First Time Homebuyer 

Program

• Goal for PY’22 was to assist 
five households with 
housing assistance.

• One (1) household was able 
to receive $7,500 in 
assistance for down 
payment and closing costs!



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Provide Supportive 
Services & Employment for 
Youth
 Summer Hire Internship 

Program (S.H.I.P.)
  Career Counseling

• PY’ 22 goal was to engage 10 
LMI Interns.

• Two (2) LMI Interns 
participated!



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Housing Reconstruction
 Housing Rehabilitation/
 Reconstruction Program

• The PY’ 22 goal was to 
rebuild one home owned and 
occupied by an LMI 
household.

• Five (5) houses are in the pre-
construction phase!



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Improve Condition of 
Housing Stock
 Housing Rehabilitation/
 Reconstruction Program

• PY’ 22 goal was to 
rehabilitate 15 owner-
occupied single-family 
homes.

• Fifteen (15) homes were 
rehabilitated!



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Improve Presentation of 
Low- to Mod-Areas
 Keep Texas City Beautiful

• PY’ 22 goal was to affect 775 
residents in LMI areas.

• Great American Cleanup!
• Fall Sweep!



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Homeless and other 
Special Needs Activities
 Mayor’s Taskforce on 

Homelessness

• 2024 Navigation Day!



Community Development 2022-2023 
Annual Report
Coming Up!

 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing

 Revitalization
 1867 Settlement Historic District
 Greater Chelsea Manor Area



Community Development Team

Patricia Mata
Program Coordinator

Titilayo Smith
Director



Community 
Development 2022-2023 

Annual Report

Questions?
communitydevelopment@

texascitytx.gov
www.texascitytx.gov

mailto:communitydevelopment@texascitytx.gov
mailto:communitydevelopment@texascitytx.gov


   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (6) (a)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Heron's Landing Subdivision - Public Hearing - Heron's Landing Development, LLC requests
approval of amendments to the Heron's Landing Planned Unit Development (PUD) District,
Masterplan and Development Agreement
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Public Hearing to receive comments from the public in support or opposition to the request
from Heron's Landing Development, LLC for approval of amendments to the Heron's Landing
Planned Unit Development (PUD) District, Master Plan Updates and amendments to the
Development Agreement.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Heron’s Landing Subdivision is a master planned community which received preliminary zoning
approval from the City Commission on August 19, 2015, upon recommendation from the Planning
Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The Zoning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2015,
on the original application for PUD rezoning and voted 2-1 to recommend approval to the City
Commission. The original application as approved by the City Commission proposed to develop 304
lots on 87 acres. The original application proposed a lot mix of 39% 50ft lots, 52% 60ft lots, and 9%
70ft lots. 
Sections 1 and 2 have been developed in accordance with the original PUD application as approved.
These sections produced 72 lots.  Sections 1 and 2 are not impacted by the Amended PUD.

Proposed revisions to the PUD and Master Plan: The PUD  amendment is updating the original
PUD application as follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing Development, LLC as the developer
instead of Galveston Bay Investors as presented in the original PUD; (2) revising the boundary of the
PUD to include only the property in which the developer has a proprietary interest as required by
Texas City Ordinances; (3) updating the Master Plan with the overall land plan attached as Exhibit C;
(4) clarifying the required amenities as provided in Exhibit D with; and updating the Development
Schedule as provided in Exhibit E. 
The revised PUD proposes to develop 204 lots on 65.4 acres. The revised Master Plan presents a lot
mix which is slightly different but remains consistent with the character of the original PUD and the
sections which have already been developed. The revised lot mix is 45% 50ft lots; 44% 60ft lots; 12%
70ft lots. See comparison on Exhibit F.  
The revised Master Plan is adding a detention pond with green space and a playground with play
feature. The original PUD provided for only 1.2710 acres open space located in the area which is
being designated Section 4 of the revised Master Plan. The open space is being reduced to
approximate 0.5-acre open space in Section 4, but an additional approximate 10.2 acres of park space
is being added to include the detention pond and a few small future  reserves. The density of the
amended PUD is calculated as 3.1 lots/acre which is less than the density of 3.5 lots/acre in the
original PUD. 

Proposed revisions to the Development Agreement: The Development Agreement is being
amended as follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing Development LLC as the developer instead of



Galveston Bay Investors; (2) changing annexation from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD 79 and providing that
consent will be given by section as final plats are approved; (3) changing the requirement to verify the
achievement of an average home value of $200,000 from the 200th building permit to the 135th permit;
(4) changing the requirement to provide funding for a traffic signal on 25th Avenue N from the 250th
building permit to the 168th building permit; (5) clarifying the Development Covenants to specify
residences to consist of masonry on three sides of the first floor of each residence; and (6) updating
the names and addresses for receipt of notices.  
 

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Board voted at its regular meeting on February 19, 2024 (4-0) to recommend approval of
the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update and amendment to the Development Agreement to
the Zoning Commission.

The Zoning Commission held a public hearing and voted at its regular meeting on March 5, 2024 (4-0)
to recommend approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update and amendment to the
Development Agreement to the City Commission.  

Staff comments have been addressed and there are no objections presented to the approval of the
amendments to the PUD and Development agreement and update of the Master Plan.

 The amendments to the PUD application and to the Development Agreement are updating both to
current conditions and reconciling to the current ordinances. The amendments are maintaining the
character of the PUD as originally approved and remaining consistent with the expectations presented
to the current residential owners residing in Sections 1 and 2. The amendments are also updating and
clarifying the amenities to be provided and schedule for same. An updated Development Schedule is
also provided and incorporated into the PUD as amended. 
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report for Herons Landing PUD Amendment 
Heron's Landing Amended PUD Application 
Heron's Landing Assignment of Dev Agmt - Signed 
Heron'a Landing Original Land Plan 
02-19-2024 PB Minutes 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement - signed 
3-5-24 ZC Minutes 



CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 

ENGINEERING & PLANNING • OFFICE (409) 643-5936 

 
Mayor: 

Dedrick Johnson 

 
 

Commissioners: 

 Thelma Bowie 

 Abel Garza Jr. 

 DeAndre’ Knoxson 

 Felix Herrera 

 Dorthea Jones Pointer   

 Jami Clark 

 

 

 

"QPS – Quality Public Service" 

 

7800 Emmett F. Lowry Expressway • P.O. Drawer 2608 • Texas City, Texas 77592-2608 
http://www.texas-city-tx.org 

 

 

TO:  Planning Board – February 19, 2024 

FROM:  Kim Golden, P.E., City Engineer 

CC:  Doug Kneupper, P.E. 

DATE:   February 15, 2024 

RE:   Heron’s Landing Subdivision – Amendments to PUD Application, Master Plan and Development Agreement 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background:    Heron’s Landing Subdivision is a master planned community which received preliminary zoning 
approval on August 19, 2015, upon recommendation from the Planning Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The 
Zoning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2015, on the original application for PUD rezoning and voted 2-
1 to recommend approval to the City Commission. The original application as approved by the City Commission 
proposed to develop 304 lots on 87 acres. The original application proposed a lot mix of 39% 50ft lots, 52% 60ft lots, 
and 9% 70ft lots.  

Sections 1 and 2 have been developed in accordance with the original PUD application as approved. These sections 
produced 72 lots.  Sections 1 and 2 are not impacted by the Amended PUD.  

Proposed revisions to the PUD and Master Plan: The amendment is updating the original PUD application as 
follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing Development, LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors as 
presented in the original PUD; (2) revising the boundary of the PUD to include only the property in which the 
developer has a proprietary interest as required by Texas City Ordinances; (3) updating the Master Plan with the 
overall land plan attached as Exhibit C; and (4) clarifying the required amenities as provided in Exhibit D with 
updated Development Schedule in Exhibit E.  

The revised application proposes to develop 204 lots on 65.4 acres. The revised Master Plan presents a lot mix which 
is slightly different but remains consistent with the character of the original PUD and the sections which have 
already been developed. The revised lot mix is 45% 50ft lots; 44% 60ft lots; 12% 70ft lots. See comparison on Exhibit 
F.   

The revised Master Plan is adding a detention pond with green space and a playground with play feature. The 
original PUD provided for only 1.2710 acres open space located in the area which is being designated Section 4 of 
the revised Master Plan. The open space is being reduced to approximate 0.5-acre open space in Section 4, but an  



 

additional approximate 10.2 acres of park space is being added to include the detention pond and a few small future  
reserves. The density of the amended PUD is calculated as 3.1 lots/acre which is less than the density of 3.5 lots/acre 
in the original PUD.   

Proposed revisions to the Development Agreement: The Development Agreement is being amended as follows: (1) 
recognizing Heron’s Landing Development LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors; (2) changing 
annexation from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD 79  and providing that consent will be given as sections are platted; (3) 
changing the requirement to verify the achievement of an average home value of $200,000 from the 200th building 
permit to the 135th permit; (4) changing the requirement to provide funding for a traffic signal on 25th Avenue N 
from the 250th building permit to the 168th building permit; (5) clarifying the Development Covenants to specify 
residences to consist of masonry on three sides of the first floor of each residence; and (6) updating the names and 
addresses for receipt of notices.   

Staff analysis and recommendation:  The amendments to the PUD application and to the Development Agreement 
are updating both to current conditions and reconciling to the current ordinances. The amendments are maintaining 
the character of the PUD as originally approved and remaining consistent with the expectations presented to the 
current residential owners residing in Sections 1 and 2. The amendments are also updating and clarifying the 
amenities to be provided and schedule for same. An updated Development Schedule is also provided and 
incorporated into the PUD as amended.  

Staff comments have been addressed and there are no objections presented to the approval of the amendments to 
the PUD and Development agreement and update of the Master Plan. All should be recommended to the Zoning 
Commission and the City Commission for approvals.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

































































Original Land Plan (Masterplan) attached to Development Agreement - Dated 03/04/2022































ZONING COMMISSION 
MARCH 5, 2024 

 

The Zoning Commission of the City of Texas City met in a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
March 5, 2024, at 5:15 p.m. Zoning Commission members present: Chairman Perry 
O’Brien, Aric Owens, Commissioner Thelma Bowie and Alternate Member Lisa Salinas. 
Staff members present were: Kimberly Golden and Veronica Carreon. Guests were: 
David Smith, Jerry LeBlanc, Manuel De La Cerda, Kimberly Brown, Corey Whitley, 
Teresa Brautigam, Norman Reed, Steve Herrera and Raymond Bennett. 

Chairman O’Brien indicated a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.  

1) APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A motion to approve the minutes of January 16, 2024, was made by Commissioner 
Thelma Bowie/Alternate Member Lisa Salinas. All other members present voted aye. 

 
2) PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Kimberly Brown submitted a Request to Address Commission regarding the proposed 
amendment for Heron’s Landing. Chairman Perry O’Brien asked if she would like to speak 
now or after the presentation to which Ms. Brown replied that she would hear the 
presentation first and then ask questions.  

Mr. David Smith also submitted a Request to Address Commission regarding the 
proposed amendment for Heron’s Landing. Mr. Smith stated he would also like to hear 
the presentation and then ask questions.  

3) PUBLIC HEARING 

a. Heron’s Landing Development requests approval of amendments to 
Heron’s Landing Planned Unit Development Application, Masterplan and 
Development Agreement. 

Ms. Kim Golden stated this is a proposed amendment to the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) which is already in existence in the subdivision. The original PUD received 
Preliminary Zoning Approval from City Commission on August 19, 2015. At that time, it 
was upon recommendation from the Planning Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The 
Zoning Commission also held a Public Hearing on July 21, 2015. This is a long way of 
saying that the original PUD was approved in the correct process.  

Now that it is 9 years later, some things have changed. The Developer has come forward 
to memorializing those changes and the amendments go through the same process as 
the original PUD. 

It is very important for everyone in attendance to know that these changes don’t impact 
Sections 1 and 2 of Heron’s Landing. Only Section 3 and the remaining sections of the 
PUD which have not yet been built will be covered by these amendments. Also, these 
amendments have been reviewed by the Planning Board and have been brought to the 



2 
 

 

 

Zoning Commission with the recommendation for approval without objections by 
members of the Planning Board.  

A Public Hearing Notice was mailed USPS CMRRR to 68 property owners which would 
be the property owners within 200’ of the area being impacted by the application. Staff 
did not receive any responses in support of or opposition to the application.    

The proposed revisions in the PUD recognize Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the 
developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors as presented in the original PUD. This is 
important because the City’s ordinances require the applicant bringing forth the PUD to 
have a proprietary interest. There is no evidence that Galveston Bay Investors ever had 
a proprietary interest in Heron’s Landing. According to public records, it still does not have 
an interest.  

The amendment is also revising the boundary of the PUD and updating the Master Plan, 
which is attached as Exhibit C. A copy of the original land plan was shown to those 
assembled for comparison to the Updated Master Plan. The Updated Master Plan shows 
a detention area that’s also going to be a park with amenities including a play feature.  
The density of the updated master plan is essentially unchanged and the lot mix fairly 
unchanged. The amendment also clarifies the amenities required to be provided for a 
playground and other improvements to the common areas.  

The updates to the Development Agreement are 1) the name change of Heron’s Landing 
Development, LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors, which is being 
recognized; 2) the annexation will also be changed from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD 79; 3) 
changing the requirement to verify the achievement of an average home value of 
$200,000 from the 200th building permit to the 135th permit; 4) changing the requirement 
for when the funding of a traffic signal on 25th Avenue North & 9th Street North from the 
250th building permit to the 168th building permit; 5) clarifying the Development Covenants 
to specify residences to consist of masonry on three sides of the first floor of each 
residence; and 6) updating the names and addresses for receipts of notices.  

These proposed changes are in line with the character of the original PUD. It is basically 
updating the original plan and agreement with the Developer to align with the actual 
development as it has unfolded during the nine (9) years of development. The 
amendments come to the Zoning Commission with recommendation from staff and from 
the Planning Board for approval.  

Chairman Perry O’Brien questioned that there are no zoning changes taking place. Ms. 
Golden replied that the PUD is a zone and that some of the details are being changed, 
but it will still be a PUD. Chairman O’Brien asked for clarification about how the PUD is 
changing from the original. Ms. Golden replied that it is somewhat changing the 1) number 
of lots; 2) the arrangement of the lots; 3) how much green space there is going to be; and 
4) the development timeline has been updated.   

Chairman O’Brien then stated that this is not a zoning change, but an update to the PUD, 
to which Ms. Golden replied that is correct - staff is taking it through the same process as 
if it were a zoning change as required by the Zoning Ordinance.   

Alternate Member Aric Owens then asked why the MUD is changing from GCMUD 31 to 
GCMUD 79.  Ms. Golden replied that GCMUD 31 is older than GCMUD 79. She spoke 



3 
 

 

 

with the MUD lawyers and engineers and the best practice to get a reasonable tax rate is 
to have all of the houses in the MUD about the same age. From time to time there is some 
pushback from the MUD boards on the idea of having new houses come in when there 
are already some older houses in place. The new homeowners feel like they are paying 
for the prior residences stuff or vice versa. Chairman O’Brien stated this is typical in the 
maturity of houses, to which Ms. Golden stated that is close. 

Chairman O’Brien then stated he noticed a change regarding the detention pond. Ms. 
Golden explained the land remaining in the PUD District to be developed is low and needs 
dirt to build it up to the required elevation to build houses. So, the pond is dug out to 
provide the dirt required. The ponds are not dug out because there is a need for detention.     

Jerry LeBlanc agreed with Ms. Golden but added that Swallow’s Meadow also drains onto 
this property. This has caused them to struggle with Sections 1, 2 and 3 as built. They 
have backlot interceptors that accept the flow from Swallow’s Meadow. These devices 
have to be maintained by the HOA.    

Chairman O’Brien asked if there was any additional presentation to be heard.  

Mr. LeBlanc stated that the main items they are changing in the PUD are enhancing the 
subdivision, creating more amenities, more open space, keeping the lot size mix the 
same, adding more restrictions on the masonry content, and installing the traffic light 
sooner. Everything in this PUD costs more but is adding to the development of Heron’s 
Landing.   

Chairman O’Brien then reiterated that this is not a zoning change, but a clarification and 
revision to update and bring the PUD more into compliant with the correct names in place, 
and the correct titles of the company in place. He asked if this was correct, to which Ms. 
Golden replied that is correct. With that being said, Mr. O’Brien stated when they are done 
today, they are going to either agree with the recommendation from the Planning Board 
and agree with the comments that staff have also made or disagree. Ms. Golden replied 
that the Zoning Commission is making a recommendation to the City Commission, to 
either approve or deny the amendments, to which Mr. O’Brien agreed. 

There were no further questions, to which a motion was made by Aric 
Owens/Commissioner Thelma Bowie to open the Public Hearing. All other 
members voted aye.  

• Chairman O’Brien called upon Ms. Kimberly Brown (1426 29th Avenue North) to 
address the Commission.  

Ms. Brown stated she did not understand the verbiage regarding a PUD or MUD 

but added that she has been in her house for 24 years and asked what the property 

was zoned before it was Heron’s Landing. Ms. Golden replied that it was most 

likely Single Family Residential and then changed to a PUD.  

Chairman O’Brien asked Ms. Brown to indicate where she lives on the exhibit. After 

indicating her property, Ms. Brown stated that she is concerned about where the 

water will drain to from houses being built behind her. She stated that her house 

has never flooded, and she is concerned about this.  



4 
 

 

 

Chairman O’Brien asked Ms. Brown whether she had any other issues or concerns 

to mention. She stated she had a concern about traffic but that was answered 

when the installation of the traffic light was stated.  

Mr. Jerry LeBlanc added that one of the good things about this area is that flood 

insurance is not required due to the levy system. In Sections 1 and 2 they actually 

brought fill dirt in from outside the levy. They decreased the level of the levy by 

bringing in the fill dirt. Additional dirt will not be brought in. They are moving dirt 

from one area to another. The detention pond will drain due north into the rainwater 

canal. The rainwater canal then flows east into the pump station and then pumped 

into Moses Lake. This is actually better than what was originally put in place.  

• Mr. David Smith (1402 29th Avenue North) indicated his property. He stated that 
he has no opposition to the amendments, but his concern is will there be a 
spillover. Mr. Steve Herrera replied that there will not be any spillover. There are 
some emergency swales to the north.   

Mr. Smith then asked if the elevations would be the same as what is in The Islands, 

to which Mr. LeBlanc replied they are using the same elevations that are in 

Sections 1 and 2 and following the city’s requirements of 7’ minimum finished floor 

elevation.  

Mr. Smith then asked about the maintenance of the property around the detention 

pond, to which Mr. LeBlanc replied that the MUD would be responsible.  

• Mr. Manuel De La Cerda (1318 29th Avenue North) stated that because of what he 
experienced during Hurricane Harvey he is concerned because his property is low, 
and he has a lot of trees against his fence line. He is concerned about keeping the 
creek behind his property as a retention pond. He asked if the trees behind his 
fence would remain in place.  

Mr. LeBlanc replied that Heron’s Landing cannot be raised to the same height as 

The Islands. He added that they may not keep the canal behind Mr. De La Cerda’s 

property, but they are currently and will continue to accept Heron’s Landing’s 

water.  

Mr. De La Cerda then asked where the fence line for the new homes would be and 

will there be a gap between the fences. Mr. LeBlanc replied that the builder would 

build the fence on the property lines but would work out any issues on an individual 

basis. 

• Mr. Norman Reed stated he owns the property on the west boundary of Heron’s 
Landing and is very much in favor of this project. The drainage is very much 
improved with the onsite detention pond. He believes that traffic will flow much 
nicer.  



5 
 

 

 

Mr. De La Cerda added that he has never heard of anyone putting in any traffic lights in 

the neighborhood. Mr. LeBlanc replied that the light would be installed where the current 

flashing light is located at 25th Avenue North and 9th Street North.  

• Ms. Teresa Brautigam (1206 29th Avenue North) stated that she has concerns 
about flooding. She has listened to the developer say there will be no flooding, but 
every time it rains there is water at her fence line. She also has a gate leading to 
the Heron’s Landing property and is concerned about the new fence line. She 
asked about the amenities that will be provided and is concerned about strangers 
having access to her backyard via the gate. She added that she was told by her 
real estate agent that nobody would ever build behind her and she is going to lose 
her wonderful view. Mr. LeBlanc replied that they are enhancing the land plan 
behind her, not trying to ruin her view.  

• Mr. Raymond Bennett (1426 29th Avenue North) asked about the collectors in 
phase 1 and 2. He understands where the drainage will go, but asked where else 
the collectors would go. Mr. LeBlanc replied that the collectors are open swales 
that drain into the canal.  

• Mr. Corey Whitley (1014 White Willow Drive) stated he is located in the existing 
section of Heron’s Landing right next to the new sections and has no bulkhead, so 
he has lost dirt and his property slopes down at the property line. A lot of dirt has 
washed away from his property so his property slopes before it gets to his fence. 
There is nothing he can do to correct this because of the way it slopes and the 
property next to him is so low. Mr. Reed stated that he will go by and take a look 
at Mr. Whitley’s property. Mr. Whitley asked whether when the new section is filled 
if it would be possible for his property to be filled back in. Mr. Reed replied that his 
property and Section 4 behind him would match up.  

There were no questions or further discussion, to which a motion was made by 
Aric Owens/Commissioner Thelma Bowie to close the Public Hearing. All other 
members voted aye.   

4) Consider and take action on the recommendation to approve amendments to 
the PUD Application, Masterplan, and Development Agreement for Heron’s 
Landing Subdivision. Located north of Swallows Meadow Subdivision and west 
of Pelican Harbour Subdivision.  

After presentation, a motion was made by Commissioner Thelma Bowie/Aric 
Roberts to recommend approving the amendments to Heron’s Landing Planned 
Development Application, Master Plan and Development Agreement. All other 
members present voted aye. 

5) GENERAL UPDATES 

Ms. Golden stated that staff is working to update the current zoning map, which is a PDF 

map and not user friendly when searching for the zoning designation of a specific 



6 
 

 

 

property. Work is underway to upgrade the zoning map to a GIS based web-map so a 

search can be made for a property by address. The map will take you to the property and 

tell you what the zoning is and will also include a link to the zoning ordinance to review 

what can be done in that district. There is also a link to let someone know what the 

Gateway Overlay District is and what is required. When ready to use, this will be an easier 

way for the public to find out how a property is zoned, or the uses allowed in each zone. 

The web-based zoning map was demonstrated for the Zoning Commission.   

OTHER BUSINESS (Any conceptual development proposal requesting to come before 

the Zoning Commission) 

Chairman O’Brien asked if there was any other business to which there was none. A 

motion was made by Commissioner Thelma Bowie/Aric Owens to adjourn. All 

members present voted aye.  

 

 
_____________________________________________   
Kimberly Golden, Secretary   Date 

Minutes approved by the Planning Board at its meeting on ______________________. 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Heron's Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Zoning Approval - Consider and take action on the
recommendation to approve amendments to the PUD Application, Masterplan, and Development
Agreement for Heron’s Landing Subdivision
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the request from Heron's Landing Development, LLC to approve
amendments to the PUD Application, Master Plan Updates, and amendments to the
Development Agreement for Heron’s Landing Subdivision. The subdivision is located north of
Swallows Meadow Subdivision and west of Pelican Harbour Subdivision.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Heron’s Landing Subdivision is a master planned community which received preliminary
zoning approval from the City Commission on August 19, 2015, upon recommendation from
the Planning Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The Zoning Commission held a public
hearing on July 21, 2015, on the original application for PUD rezoning and voted 2-1 to
recommend approval to the City Commission. The original application as approved by the City
Commission proposed to develop 304 lots on 87 acres. The original application proposed a lot
mix of 39% 50ft lots, 52% 60ft lots, and 9% 70ft lots. Sections 1 and 2 have been developed in
accordance with the original PUD application as approved. These sections produced 72 lots. 

Sections 1 and 2 are not impacted by the Amended PUD.

Proposed revisions to the PUD and Master Plan: The amendment is updating the original
PUD application as follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing Development, LLC as the
developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors as presented in the original PUD; (2) revising
the boundary of the PUD to include only the property in which the developer has a proprietary
interest as required by Texas City Ordinances; (3) updating the Master Plan with the overall
land plan attached as Exhibit C; (4) clarifying the required amenities as provided in Exhibit D
with; and updating the Development Schedule as provided in Exhibit E. The revised
application proposes to develop 204 lots on 65.4 acres. The revised Master Plan presents a
lot mix which is slightly different but remains consistent with the character of the original PUD
and the sections which have already been developed. The revised lot mix is 45% 50ft lots;
44% 60ft lots; 12% 70ft lots. See comparison on Exhibit F.  The revised Master Plan is adding
a detention pond with green space and a playground with play feature. The original PUD
provided for only 1.2710 acres open space located in the area which is being designated
Section 4 of the revised Master Plan. The open space is being reduced to approximate
0.5-acre open space in Section 4, but an additional approximate 10.2 acres of park space is
being added to include the detention pond and a few small future reserves. The density of the
amended PUD is calculated as 3.1 lots/acres which is less than the density of 3.5 lots/acre in
the original PUD. 



Proposed revisions to the Development Agreement: The Development Agreement is being
amended as follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing Development LLC as the developer
instead of Galveston Bay Investors; (2) changing annexation from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD
79 and providing that consent will be given by section as final plats are approved; (3)
changing the requirement to verify the achievement of an average home value of $200,000
from the 200th building permit to the 135th permit; (4) changing the requirement to provide
funding for a traffic signal on 25th Avenue N from the 250th building permit to the 168th
building permit; (5) clarifying the Development Covenants to specify residences to consist of
masonry on three sides of the first floor of each residence; and (6) updating the names and
addresses for receipt of notices. 

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Board voted at its regular meeting on February 19, 2024 (4-0) to recommend
approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update and amendment to the
Development Agreement to the Zoning Commission.

The Zoning Commission held a public hearing and voted at its regular meeting on March 5,
2024 (4-0) to recommend approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update and
amendment to the Development Agreement to the City Commission.  

Staff comments have been addressed and there are no objections presented to the approval
of the amendments to the PUD and Development agreement and update of the Master Plan. 

The amendments to the PUD application and to the Development Agreement are updating
both to current conditions and reconciling to the current ordinances. The amendments are
maintaining the character of the PUD as originally approved and remaining consistent with the
expectations presented to the current residential owners residing in Sections 1 and 2. The
amendments are also updating and clarifying the amenities to be provided and schedule for
same. An updated Development Schedule is also provided and incorporated into the PUD as
amended.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report for Herons Landing PUD Amendment 
Herons Landing Amended PUD Application 
Assignment of Development Agreement - signed - February 2024 
Herons Landing Original Land Plan 
02-19-2024 PB Minutes 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement - signed 
3-5-24 ZC Minutes 



CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 

ENGINEERING & PLANNING • OFFICE (409) 643-5936 

 
Mayor: 

Dedrick Johnson 

 
 

Commissioners: 

 Thelma Bowie 

 Abel Garza Jr. 

 DeAndre’ Knoxson 

 Felix Herrera 

 Dorthea Jones Pointer   

 Jami Clark 

 

 

 

"QPS – Quality Public Service" 

 

7800 Emmett F. Lowry Expressway • P.O. Drawer 2608 • Texas City, Texas 77592-2608 
http://www.texas-city-tx.org 

 

 

TO:  Planning Board – February 19, 2024 

FROM:  Kim Golden, P.E., City Engineer 

CC:  Doug Kneupper, P.E. 

DATE:   February 15, 2024 

RE:   Heron’s Landing Subdivision – Amendments to PUD Application, Master Plan and Development Agreement 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background:    Heron’s Landing Subdivision is a master planned community which received preliminary zoning 
approval on August 19, 2015, upon recommendation from the Planning Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The 
Zoning Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2015, on the original application for PUD rezoning and voted 2-
1 to recommend approval to the City Commission. The original application as approved by the City Commission 
proposed to develop 304 lots on 87 acres. The original application proposed a lot mix of 39% 50ft lots, 52% 60ft lots, 
and 9% 70ft lots.  

Sections 1 and 2 have been developed in accordance with the original PUD application as approved. These sections 
produced 72 lots.  Sections 1 and 2 are not impacted by the Amended PUD.  

Proposed revisions to the PUD and Master Plan: The amendment is updating the original PUD application as 
follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing Development, LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors as 
presented in the original PUD; (2) revising the boundary of the PUD to include only the property in which the 
developer has a proprietary interest as required by Texas City Ordinances; (3) updating the Master Plan with the 
overall land plan attached as Exhibit C; and (4) clarifying the required amenities as provided in Exhibit D with 
updated Development Schedule in Exhibit E.  

The revised application proposes to develop 204 lots on 65.4 acres. The revised Master Plan presents a lot mix which 
is slightly different but remains consistent with the character of the original PUD and the sections which have 
already been developed. The revised lot mix is 45% 50ft lots; 44% 60ft lots; 12% 70ft lots. See comparison on Exhibit 
F.   

The revised Master Plan is adding a detention pond with green space and a playground with play feature. The 
original PUD provided for only 1.2710 acres open space located in the area which is being designated Section 4 of 
the revised Master Plan. The open space is being reduced to approximate 0.5-acre open space in Section 4, but an  



 

additional approximate 10.2 acres of park space is being added to include the detention pond and a few small future  
reserves. The density of the amended PUD is calculated as 3.1 lots/acre which is less than the density of 3.5 lots/acre 
in the original PUD.   

Proposed revisions to the Development Agreement: The Development Agreement is being amended as follows: (1) 
recognizing Heron’s Landing Development LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors; (2) changing 
annexation from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD 79  and providing that consent will be given as sections are platted; (3) 
changing the requirement to verify the achievement of an average home value of $200,000 from the 200th building 
permit to the 135th permit; (4) changing the requirement to provide funding for a traffic signal on 25th Avenue N 
from the 250th building permit to the 168th building permit; (5) clarifying the Development Covenants to specify 
residences to consist of masonry on three sides of the first floor of each residence; and (6) updating the names and 
addresses for receipt of notices.   

Staff analysis and recommendation:  The amendments to the PUD application and to the Development Agreement 
are updating both to current conditions and reconciling to the current ordinances. The amendments are maintaining 
the character of the PUD as originally approved and remaining consistent with the expectations presented to the 
current residential owners residing in Sections 1 and 2. The amendments are also updating and clarifying the 
amenities to be provided and schedule for same. An updated Development Schedule is also provided and 
incorporated into the PUD as amended.  

Staff comments have been addressed and there are no objections presented to the approval of the amendments to 
the PUD and Development agreement and update of the Master Plan. All should be recommended to the Zoning 
Commission and the City Commission for approvals.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

































































Original Land Plan (Masterplan) attached to Development Agreement - Dated 03/04/2022































ZONING COMMISSION 
MARCH 5, 2024 

 

The Zoning Commission of the City of Texas City met in a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
March 5, 2024, at 5:15 p.m. Zoning Commission members present: Chairman Perry 
O’Brien, Aric Owens, Commissioner Thelma Bowie and Alternate Member Lisa Salinas. 
Staff members present were: Kimberly Golden and Veronica Carreon. Guests were: 
David Smith, Jerry LeBlanc, Manuel De La Cerda, Kimberly Brown, Corey Whitley, 
Teresa Brautigam, Norman Reed, Steve Herrera and Raymond Bennett. 

Chairman O’Brien indicated a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.  

1) APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A motion to approve the minutes of January 16, 2024, was made by Commissioner 
Thelma Bowie/Alternate Member Lisa Salinas. All other members present voted aye. 

 
2) PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Kimberly Brown submitted a Request to Address Commission regarding the proposed 
amendment for Heron’s Landing. Chairman Perry O’Brien asked if she would like to speak 
now or after the presentation to which Ms. Brown replied that she would hear the 
presentation first and then ask questions.  

Mr. David Smith also submitted a Request to Address Commission regarding the 
proposed amendment for Heron’s Landing. Mr. Smith stated he would also like to hear 
the presentation and then ask questions.  

3) PUBLIC HEARING 

a. Heron’s Landing Development requests approval of amendments to 
Heron’s Landing Planned Unit Development Application, Masterplan and 
Development Agreement. 

Ms. Kim Golden stated this is a proposed amendment to the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) which is already in existence in the subdivision. The original PUD received 
Preliminary Zoning Approval from City Commission on August 19, 2015. At that time, it 
was upon recommendation from the Planning Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The 
Zoning Commission also held a Public Hearing on July 21, 2015. This is a long way of 
saying that the original PUD was approved in the correct process.  

Now that it is 9 years later, some things have changed. The Developer has come forward 
to memorializing those changes and the amendments go through the same process as 
the original PUD. 

It is very important for everyone in attendance to know that these changes don’t impact 
Sections 1 and 2 of Heron’s Landing. Only Section 3 and the remaining sections of the 
PUD which have not yet been built will be covered by these amendments. Also, these 
amendments have been reviewed by the Planning Board and have been brought to the 



2 
 

 

 

Zoning Commission with the recommendation for approval without objections by 
members of the Planning Board.  

A Public Hearing Notice was mailed USPS CMRRR to 68 property owners which would 
be the property owners within 200’ of the area being impacted by the application. Staff 
did not receive any responses in support of or opposition to the application.    

The proposed revisions in the PUD recognize Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the 
developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors as presented in the original PUD. This is 
important because the City’s ordinances require the applicant bringing forth the PUD to 
have a proprietary interest. There is no evidence that Galveston Bay Investors ever had 
a proprietary interest in Heron’s Landing. According to public records, it still does not have 
an interest.  

The amendment is also revising the boundary of the PUD and updating the Master Plan, 
which is attached as Exhibit C. A copy of the original land plan was shown to those 
assembled for comparison to the Updated Master Plan. The Updated Master Plan shows 
a detention area that’s also going to be a park with amenities including a play feature.  
The density of the updated master plan is essentially unchanged and the lot mix fairly 
unchanged. The amendment also clarifies the amenities required to be provided for a 
playground and other improvements to the common areas.  

The updates to the Development Agreement are 1) the name change of Heron’s Landing 
Development, LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors, which is being 
recognized; 2) the annexation will also be changed from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD 79; 3) 
changing the requirement to verify the achievement of an average home value of 
$200,000 from the 200th building permit to the 135th permit; 4) changing the requirement 
for when the funding of a traffic signal on 25th Avenue North & 9th Street North from the 
250th building permit to the 168th building permit; 5) clarifying the Development Covenants 
to specify residences to consist of masonry on three sides of the first floor of each 
residence; and 6) updating the names and addresses for receipts of notices.  

These proposed changes are in line with the character of the original PUD. It is basically 
updating the original plan and agreement with the Developer to align with the actual 
development as it has unfolded during the nine (9) years of development. The 
amendments come to the Zoning Commission with recommendation from staff and from 
the Planning Board for approval.  

Chairman Perry O’Brien questioned that there are no zoning changes taking place. Ms. 
Golden replied that the PUD is a zone and that some of the details are being changed, 
but it will still be a PUD. Chairman O’Brien asked for clarification about how the PUD is 
changing from the original. Ms. Golden replied that it is somewhat changing the 1) number 
of lots; 2) the arrangement of the lots; 3) how much green space there is going to be; and 
4) the development timeline has been updated.   

Chairman O’Brien then stated that this is not a zoning change, but an update to the PUD, 
to which Ms. Golden replied that is correct - staff is taking it through the same process as 
if it were a zoning change as required by the Zoning Ordinance.   

Alternate Member Aric Owens then asked why the MUD is changing from GCMUD 31 to 
GCMUD 79.  Ms. Golden replied that GCMUD 31 is older than GCMUD 79. She spoke 



3 
 

 

 

with the MUD lawyers and engineers and the best practice to get a reasonable tax rate is 
to have all of the houses in the MUD about the same age. From time to time there is some 
pushback from the MUD boards on the idea of having new houses come in when there 
are already some older houses in place. The new homeowners feel like they are paying 
for the prior residences stuff or vice versa. Chairman O’Brien stated this is typical in the 
maturity of houses, to which Ms. Golden stated that is close. 

Chairman O’Brien then stated he noticed a change regarding the detention pond. Ms. 
Golden explained the land remaining in the PUD District to be developed is low and needs 
dirt to build it up to the required elevation to build houses. So, the pond is dug out to 
provide the dirt required. The ponds are not dug out because there is a need for detention.     

Jerry LeBlanc agreed with Ms. Golden but added that Swallow’s Meadow also drains onto 
this property. This has caused them to struggle with Sections 1, 2 and 3 as built. They 
have backlot interceptors that accept the flow from Swallow’s Meadow. These devices 
have to be maintained by the HOA.    

Chairman O’Brien asked if there was any additional presentation to be heard.  

Mr. LeBlanc stated that the main items they are changing in the PUD are enhancing the 
subdivision, creating more amenities, more open space, keeping the lot size mix the 
same, adding more restrictions on the masonry content, and installing the traffic light 
sooner. Everything in this PUD costs more but is adding to the development of Heron’s 
Landing.   

Chairman O’Brien then reiterated that this is not a zoning change, but a clarification and 
revision to update and bring the PUD more into compliant with the correct names in place, 
and the correct titles of the company in place. He asked if this was correct, to which Ms. 
Golden replied that is correct. With that being said, Mr. O’Brien stated when they are done 
today, they are going to either agree with the recommendation from the Planning Board 
and agree with the comments that staff have also made or disagree. Ms. Golden replied 
that the Zoning Commission is making a recommendation to the City Commission, to 
either approve or deny the amendments, to which Mr. O’Brien agreed. 

There were no further questions, to which a motion was made by Aric 
Owens/Commissioner Thelma Bowie to open the Public Hearing. All other 
members voted aye.  

• Chairman O’Brien called upon Ms. Kimberly Brown (1426 29th Avenue North) to 
address the Commission.  

Ms. Brown stated she did not understand the verbiage regarding a PUD or MUD 

but added that she has been in her house for 24 years and asked what the property 

was zoned before it was Heron’s Landing. Ms. Golden replied that it was most 

likely Single Family Residential and then changed to a PUD.  

Chairman O’Brien asked Ms. Brown to indicate where she lives on the exhibit. After 

indicating her property, Ms. Brown stated that she is concerned about where the 

water will drain to from houses being built behind her. She stated that her house 

has never flooded, and she is concerned about this.  



4 
 

 

 

Chairman O’Brien asked Ms. Brown whether she had any other issues or concerns 

to mention. She stated she had a concern about traffic but that was answered 

when the installation of the traffic light was stated.  

Mr. Jerry LeBlanc added that one of the good things about this area is that flood 

insurance is not required due to the levy system. In Sections 1 and 2 they actually 

brought fill dirt in from outside the levy. They decreased the level of the levy by 

bringing in the fill dirt. Additional dirt will not be brought in. They are moving dirt 

from one area to another. The detention pond will drain due north into the rainwater 

canal. The rainwater canal then flows east into the pump station and then pumped 

into Moses Lake. This is actually better than what was originally put in place.  

• Mr. David Smith (1402 29th Avenue North) indicated his property. He stated that 
he has no opposition to the amendments, but his concern is will there be a 
spillover. Mr. Steve Herrera replied that there will not be any spillover. There are 
some emergency swales to the north.   

Mr. Smith then asked if the elevations would be the same as what is in The Islands, 

to which Mr. LeBlanc replied they are using the same elevations that are in 

Sections 1 and 2 and following the city’s requirements of 7’ minimum finished floor 

elevation.  

Mr. Smith then asked about the maintenance of the property around the detention 

pond, to which Mr. LeBlanc replied that the MUD would be responsible.  

• Mr. Manuel De La Cerda (1318 29th Avenue North) stated that because of what he 
experienced during Hurricane Harvey he is concerned because his property is low, 
and he has a lot of trees against his fence line. He is concerned about keeping the 
creek behind his property as a retention pond. He asked if the trees behind his 
fence would remain in place.  

Mr. LeBlanc replied that Heron’s Landing cannot be raised to the same height as 

The Islands. He added that they may not keep the canal behind Mr. De La Cerda’s 

property, but they are currently and will continue to accept Heron’s Landing’s 

water.  

Mr. De La Cerda then asked where the fence line for the new homes would be and 

will there be a gap between the fences. Mr. LeBlanc replied that the builder would 

build the fence on the property lines but would work out any issues on an individual 

basis. 

• Mr. Norman Reed stated he owns the property on the west boundary of Heron’s 
Landing and is very much in favor of this project. The drainage is very much 
improved with the onsite detention pond. He believes that traffic will flow much 
nicer.  



5 
 

 

 

Mr. De La Cerda added that he has never heard of anyone putting in any traffic lights in 

the neighborhood. Mr. LeBlanc replied that the light would be installed where the current 

flashing light is located at 25th Avenue North and 9th Street North.  

• Ms. Teresa Brautigam (1206 29th Avenue North) stated that she has concerns 
about flooding. She has listened to the developer say there will be no flooding, but 
every time it rains there is water at her fence line. She also has a gate leading to 
the Heron’s Landing property and is concerned about the new fence line. She 
asked about the amenities that will be provided and is concerned about strangers 
having access to her backyard via the gate. She added that she was told by her 
real estate agent that nobody would ever build behind her and she is going to lose 
her wonderful view. Mr. LeBlanc replied that they are enhancing the land plan 
behind her, not trying to ruin her view.  

• Mr. Raymond Bennett (1426 29th Avenue North) asked about the collectors in 
phase 1 and 2. He understands where the drainage will go, but asked where else 
the collectors would go. Mr. LeBlanc replied that the collectors are open swales 
that drain into the canal.  

• Mr. Corey Whitley (1014 White Willow Drive) stated he is located in the existing 
section of Heron’s Landing right next to the new sections and has no bulkhead, so 
he has lost dirt and his property slopes down at the property line. A lot of dirt has 
washed away from his property so his property slopes before it gets to his fence. 
There is nothing he can do to correct this because of the way it slopes and the 
property next to him is so low. Mr. Reed stated that he will go by and take a look 
at Mr. Whitley’s property. Mr. Whitley asked whether when the new section is filled 
if it would be possible for his property to be filled back in. Mr. Reed replied that his 
property and Section 4 behind him would match up.  

There were no questions or further discussion, to which a motion was made by 
Aric Owens/Commissioner Thelma Bowie to close the Public Hearing. All other 
members voted aye.   

4) Consider and take action on the recommendation to approve amendments to 
the PUD Application, Masterplan, and Development Agreement for Heron’s 
Landing Subdivision. Located north of Swallows Meadow Subdivision and west 
of Pelican Harbour Subdivision.  

After presentation, a motion was made by Commissioner Thelma Bowie/Aric 
Roberts to recommend approving the amendments to Heron’s Landing Planned 
Development Application, Master Plan and Development Agreement. All other 
members present voted aye. 

5) GENERAL UPDATES 

Ms. Golden stated that staff is working to update the current zoning map, which is a PDF 

map and not user friendly when searching for the zoning designation of a specific 



6 
 

 

 

property. Work is underway to upgrade the zoning map to a GIS based web-map so a 

search can be made for a property by address. The map will take you to the property and 

tell you what the zoning is and will also include a link to the zoning ordinance to review 

what can be done in that district. There is also a link to let someone know what the 

Gateway Overlay District is and what is required. When ready to use, this will be an easier 

way for the public to find out how a property is zoned, or the uses allowed in each zone. 

The web-based zoning map was demonstrated for the Zoning Commission.   

OTHER BUSINESS (Any conceptual development proposal requesting to come before 

the Zoning Commission) 

Chairman O’Brien asked if there was any other business to which there was none. A 

motion was made by Commissioner Thelma Bowie/Aric Owens to adjourn. All 

members present voted aye.  

 

 
_____________________________________________   
Kimberly Golden, Secretary   Date 

Minutes approved by the Planning Board at its meeting on ______________________. 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (a)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve City Commission Minutes for March 20, 2024 meeting. (City Secretary)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 20, 2024 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

 
A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, MARCH 20, 2024, at 5:00
P.M. in the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been met,
the meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor   
Thelma Bowie, Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem   
Abel Garza, Jr. , Commissioner At-Large   
DeAndre' Knoxson, Commissioner District 1   
Felix Herrera, Commissioner District 2   
Dorthea Jones Pointer, Commissioner District 3   
Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4   

2. INVOCATION

Led by Pastor Matthew Walker of Restoration City Church.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark
 
4. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS
 

a. Service Awards    
Richard Washington Parks & Recreation 03/28/2014 10 years
David Richardson Public Works 03/02/2009 15 years
Charles Thompson Parks & Recreation 03/01/1989 35 years

  

 
b. Proclaiming April as Child Abuse Awareness Month (CASA of Galveston County)

Representatives from CASA of Galveston County accepted the proclamation.

  

 
5. REPORTS
 

a. Annual Bayou Golf Course Report (Golf Course)

Mike Skiba, Head Golf Pro, gave a PowerPoint presentation.

  

 



6. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Matthew Raines requested to address the Commission.
 
7. CONSENT AGENDA

Motioned by Commissioner At-Large Thelma Bowie to approve Consent Agenda items a, b,
c, d, g, h, i, and j. The motion was seconded by Commissioner District 2 Felix Hererra. 

 
a. Approve City Commission Minutes for the March 6, 2024, meeting. (City Secretary)   

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-044, authorizing the Director of Library

Services to remove delinquent fees and fines that are attached to library patron accounts that
expired prior to February 20, 2017. (Library)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-045, appointing Tamesha Hampton to the

Keep Texas City Beautiful Committee and CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee (City
Secretary)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-046, authorizing signatories for the

Community Development Block Grant – Mitigation Program (CDBG-MIT) for GLO state
contract no. 24-065-018-E175. (Community Development)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-047, adopting various policies and

procedures related to Civil Rights and Community Development Block Grant-Mitigation
(CDBG-MIT). (Community Development)

Item pulled by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 4

Jami Clark made a motion to table the items for further development. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-048, adopting a waiver valuation policy for

involuntary property acquisitions. (Community Development)

Item pulled by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 4



  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 4
Jami Clark made a motion to table the items for further development. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-049, awarding Bid No. 2024-002 Cement

Stabilized Sand Annual Contract to JDB Services, Inc. (Public Works)
  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-050, suspending the April 10, 2024,

effective date of CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC's requested rate change to permit
the City time to study the request and to establish reasonable rates. (Management Services)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
i. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-051, authorizing the Mayor, or his

designee, to enter into an agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC for the design, bidding, and
construction observation phases for the "Far West Water Plant Phase 2 Project." (Public
Works)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
j. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2024-052, authorizing the Mayor, or his

designee, to enter into an agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC for the design, bidding, and
construction observation phases for the "FM 517 Water Plant Phase Two Project" (Public
Works)

  

 
  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
8. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance 2024-04, amending the
Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV entitled "Land Usage", Chapter 160 entitled "Zoning"
and providing for publication and an effective date. (Transportation and Planning)

Kim Golden, City Engineer, requested that the City Commission defer taking action on the
third reading of the Ordinance as presented at this time.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 2

Felix Herrera to table the third reading for a future date. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-11, amending the fiscal year 2023-2024   



b. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2024-11, amending the fiscal year 2023-2024
budget to appropriate funds from the Water Tank Improvements account (501705-55560) for
$400,000 to Waterline Rehab Phase 20 (501705-55690-70520) for $75,000 and Waterline
Rehab Phase 21 (501705-55690-70521) for $325,000. (Finance)

Jeffery Miller, Interim Finance Director, stated the Finance Department recommends the
following Budget Amendment.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 2 Felix

Herrera 

  Vote: 7 - 0 CARRIED

 
9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS
 
10. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Commissioner At-Large  Abel Garza, Jr. made a MOTION to ADJOURN at
5:34 p.m.; the motion was SECONDED by Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer. All present
voted AYE. MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK D. JOHNSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (b)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Heron's Landing Section 3 - Galveston County Municipal Utility District 79 requests to Petition for
Consent to Annex 8.933 acres of land from the District and Heron's Landing Development, LLC
("Heron's"), together with the Certificate of Authority of Heron's
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
The District and Heron's Landing Section 3 request the consent of the City to the annexation
of 8.933 acres of the Heron's Landing Subdivision being Section 3 into Galveston County
Municipal Utility District 79.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the developer of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision
pursuant to that certain Development Agreement dated October 7, 2015, which was assigned
to Heron’s Landing Development, LLC on February 12, 2024, and then Amended and
Restated by Agreement dated March 20, 2024 , for which subdivision the City Commission
did preliminarily approve a zoning change to District I – Planned Unit Development and
Masterplan on August 19, 2015, and is scheduled to preliminarily approve an Amended
Planned Unit Development and Updated Master Plan and Amended and Restated
Development Agreement at its meeting on April 3, 2024. The Amended and Restated
Development Agreement provides for the City to consent to annexation of the Heron's Landing
Subdivision into GCMUD 79 by section as each section receives Final Plat Approval. 

The Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat and one-line
drawings for Section 3 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the approved
Master Plan at its meeting on March 14, 2022; and did approve the final plat and construction
drawings for Section 3 at its meeting on May 1, 2023

 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend approval of the consent to annexation of Heron's Landing Subdivision
Section 3 into GCMUD 79 because the Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a
preliminary plat and one-line drawings for Section 3 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in
accordance with the approved Master Plan at its meeting on March 14, 2022; and did approve
the final plat and construction drawings for Section 3 at its meeting on May 1, 2023. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Herons Sec 3 - Petition for Consent to Annex Land into MUD 79 



Herons Sec 3 - Certificate of Authority 
Herons Sec 3 - Survey Map 
Resoln - SEc 3 - Consent to Annexation into MUD - Heron's Sec 3 
Resolution 























Page 1 of 2 

 RESOLUTION NO. 24 -___ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CONSENT TO THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

LAND COMPRISING THE HERON’S  LANDING  SUBDIVISION SECTION 

3 INTO GALVESTON COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 79 

UPON CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND FURTHER PROVIDING 

THEREWITH. 

 

WHEREAS, the Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 (MUD 79) and Heron’s 

Landing Development, LLC have jointly petitioned the City of Texas City, TX for consent to the 

annexation of certain land comprising the Brookwater Subdivision into MUD 79, and  

 

WHEREAS, Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the developer of the Heron’s Landing  

Subdivision pursuant to that certain  Development Agreement dated October 7, 2015 which was 

assigned to Heron’s Landing Development, LLC on February 12, 2024 and then Amended and 

Restated by Agreement dated March 20, 2024, for which subdivision the City Commission did 

preliminarily approve a zoning change to District I – Planned Unit Development and Masterplan on 

August 19, 2015 and then did preliminarily approve an Amended Planned Unit Development and 

Updated Masterplan at its meeting on April 3, 2024; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat 

and one-line drawings for Section 3 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the 

approved Master Plan at its meeting on March 14, 2022; and did approve the final plat and 

construction drawings for Section 3 at its meeting on May 1, 2023. 

 

WHEREAS, staff have reviewed the Petition for Consent to Annex Land and offer no 

objection to the consent to annexation subject to certain recommended conditions as attached in 

Exhibit B to the Petition.    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1.  That the Petition for Consent to Annexation of Certain Land into the 

Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 filed jointly by said MUD and Binnacle Texas 

City 51, LLC, together with all exhibits thereto is hereby incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 2.  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby consents 

to the annexation of certain land comprising that certain 8.933 acres of the Heron’s Landing 

Subdivision Section 3 into the Galveston County Municipal District No. 79 upon conditions stated in 

Exhibit B of the Petition. 



------------------------------------- 

L: Res 12-105 Endorse Appointment/Reappointment to   2 

Galv. Cnty United Board of Health 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____day of March, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

                                                     _______________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 -053 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CONSENT TO THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

LAND COMPRISING THE HERON’S LANDING SUBDIVISION SECTION 

3 INTO GALVESTON COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 79 

UPON CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND FURTHER PROVIDING 

THEREWITH.  
 

WHEREAS, the Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 (MUD 79) and Heron’s 

Landing Development, LLC have jointly petitioned the City of Texas City, TX for consent to the 

annexation of certain land comprising the Brookwater Subdivision into MUD 79; and 

 

WHEREAS, Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the developer of the Heron’s Landing 

Subdivision pursuant to that certain Development Agreement dated October 7, 2015 which was 

assigned to Heron’s Landing Development, LLC on February 12, 2024 and then Amended and 

Restated by Agreement dated March 20, 2024, for which subdivision the City Commission did 

preliminarily approve a zoning change to District I – Planned Unit Development and Masterplan on 

August 19, 2015, and then did preliminarily approve an Amended Planned Unit Development and 

Updated Masterplan at its meeting on April 3, 2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat 

and one-line drawings for Section 3 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the 

approved Master Plan at its meeting on March 14, 2022; and did approve the final plat and 

construction drawings for Section 3 at its meeting on May 1, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff have reviewed the Petition for Consent to Annex Land and offer no 

objection to the consent to annexation subject to certain recommended conditions as attached in 

Exhibit B to the Petition. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the Petition for Consent to Annexation of Certain Land into the  

Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 filed jointly by said MUD and Binnacle Texas 

City 51, LLC, together with all exhibits thereto is hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

 

SECTION 2:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby consents 

to the annexation of certain land comprising that certain 8.933 acres of the Heron’s Landing 

Subdivision Section 3 into the Galveston County Municipal District No. 79 upon conditions stated in 

Exhibit B of the Petition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

 

 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

Rhomari D. Leigh       Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (c)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Heron's Landing Section 4 - Consent to Annexation of Heron's Landing Section 4 into Galveston
County Municipal Utility District No. 79
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Heron's Landing Development, LLC and the Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79
request City's Consent to Annexation of Heron's Landing Section 4 into Galveston County
Municipal Utility District No. 79.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the developer of the Heron’s Landing  Subdivision
pursuant to that certain  Development Agreement dated October 7, 2015 which was assigned
to Heron’s Landing Development, LLC on February 12, 2024 and then Amended and
Restated by Agreement dated March 20, 2024 , for which subdivision the City Commission
did preliminarily approve a zoning change to District I – Planned Unit Development and
Masterplan on August 19, 2015 and is scheduled to preliminarily approve an Amended
Planned Unit Development and Updated Masterplan at its meeting on April 3, 2024.  

The Amended and Restated Development Agreement dated March 20, 2024 and scheduled
for approval by the City Commission at its meeting on April 3, 2024, provides for the consent
to annexation of the Heron's Landing Subdivision into the Galveston County Municipal Utility
District No. 79 by section as each section received Final Plat approval by the Planning
Board.   

The Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat and one-line
drawings for Section 4 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the approved
Master Plan at its meeting on November 6, 2023; and did approve the final plat and
construction drawings for that certain 14.017 acres of Section 4 in accordance with the
approved UpDATED Master Plan  at its meeting on March 18, 2024.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommend consent to annexation of Heron's Landing Section 4 into GC MUD 79
because  the Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat and
one-line drawings for Section 4 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the
approved Master Plan at its meeting on November 6, 2023; and did approve the final plat and
construction drawings for Section 4 in accordance with the approved UpDATED Master Plan
 at its meeting on March 18, 2024.

Fiscal Impact



Attachments
Attach 1 - Pet for Consent to Annex Land - 8.933 acre 
Attach 2 - Cert of Authority - Heron's 
Attach 3 - 18-1002A SUR REV 02-12-2024-8.933 acres 
Resoln - SEc 4 - Consent to Annexation into MUD - Heron's Sec 4 
Resolution 























Page 1 of 2 

 RESOLUTION NO. 24 -___ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CONSENT TO THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

LAND COMPRISING THE HERON’S  LANDING  SUBDIVISION SECTION 

4 INTO GALVESTON COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 79 

UPON CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND FURTHER PROVIDING 

THEREWITH. 

 

WHEREAS, the Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 (MUD 79) and Heron’s 

Landing Development, LLC have jointly petitioned the City of Texas City, TX for consent to the 

annexation of certain land comprising the Brookwater Subdivision into MUD 79, and  

 

WHEREAS, Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the developer of the Heron’s Landing  

Subdivision pursuant to that certain  Development Agreement dated October 7, 2015 which was 

assigned to Heron’s Landing Development, LLC on February 12, 2024 and then Amended and 

Restated by Agreement dated March 20, 2024, for which subdivision the City Commission did 

preliminarily approve a zoning change to District I – Planned Unit Development and Masterplan on 

August 19, 2015 and then did preliminarily approve an Amended Planned Unit Development and 

Updated Masterplan at its meeting on April 3, 2024; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat 

and one-line drawings for Section 4 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the 

approved Master Plan at its meeting on November 6, 2023; and did approve the final plat and 

construction drawings for Section 4 in accordance with the approved UpDATED Master Plan  at its 

meeting on March 18, 2024. 

 

WHEREAS, staff have reviewed the Petition for Consent to Annex Land and offer no 

objection to the consent to annexation subject to certain recommended conditions as attached in 

Exhibit B to the Petition.    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1.  That the Petition for Consent to Annexation of Certain Land into the 

Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 filed jointly by said MUD and Binnacle Texas 

City 51, LLC, together with all exhibits thereto is hereby incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 2.  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby consents 

to the annexation of certain land comprising that certain 14.017 acres of the Heron’s Landing 

Subdivision Section 4 into the Galveston County Municipal District No. 79 upon conditions stated in 

Exhibit B of the Petition. 



------------------------------------- 

L: Res 12-105 Endorse Appointment/Reappointment to   2 

Galv. Cnty United Board of Health 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____day of March, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

                                                     _______________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 -054 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CONSENT TO THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

LAND COMPRISING THE HERON’S LANDING SUBDIVISION SECTION 

4 INTO GALVESTON COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 79 

UPON CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND FURTHER PROVIDING 

THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND 

ADOPTION.  

WHEREAS, the Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 (MUD 79) and Heron’s 

Landing Development, LLC have jointly petitioned the City of Texas City, TX for consent to the 

annexation of certain land comprising the Brookwater Subdivision into MUD 79; and 

 

WHEREAS, Heron’s Landing Development, LLC is the developer of the Heron’s Landing 

Subdivision pursuant to that certain Development Agreement dated October 7, 2015 which was 

assigned to Heron’s Landing Development, LLC on February 12, 2024 and then Amended and 

Restated by Agreement dated March 20, 2024, for which subdivision the City Commission did 

preliminarily approve a zoning change to District I – Planned Unit Development and Masterplan on 

August 19, 2015 and then did preliminarily approve an Amended Planned Unit Development and 

Updated Masterplan at its meeting on April 3, 2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of the City of Texas City did approve a preliminary plat 

and one-line drawings for Section 4 of the Heron’s Landing Subdivision in accordance with the 

approved Master Plan at its meeting on November 6, 2023; and did approve the final plat and 

construction drawings for Section 4 in accordance with the approved Updated Master Plan at its 

meeting on March 18, 2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff have reviewed the Petition for Consent to Annex Land and offer no 

objection to the consent to annexation subject to certain recommended conditions as attached in 

Exhibit B to the Petition. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the Petition for Consent to Annexation of Certain Land into the  

Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 filed jointly by said MUD and Binnacle Texas 

City 51, LLC, together with all exhibits thereto is hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

 

SECTION 2:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby consents 

to the annexation of certain land comprising that certain 14.017 acres of the Heron’s Landing 

Subdivision Section 4 into the Galveston County Municipal District No. 79 upon conditions stated in 

Exhibit B of the Petition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

Rhomari D. Leigh       Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (d)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Bid # 2024-453 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and award a contract for bid # 2024-453 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project -
Phase 23.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
A notice to bidders was advertised on February 28, 2024 and March 06, 2024. Bid packets
were made available to local area vendors via CIVCASTUSA. Bids were received and opened
on March 19, 2024 at 11:30 a.m. The lowest responsible bid meeting all specifications was
submitted by CZ Construction, LLC., for the total bid amount of $1,285,216.00. Add alternate
No. 1 was not considered for award.

Funds are available via the City of Texas City 2023/2024 Annual Budget
501702-55680-70223.

A letter of recommendation and bid tabulation are attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to award bid # 2024-453 Sanitary
Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23, to CZ Construction, LLC., for the total bid amount of
$1,285,216.00, and that the Mayor be authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City
Commission. It is further recommended that the Mayor be authorized to approve change
orders, not to exceed 25% of the total contract price, without taking the matter before the City
Commission. Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Resolution 







ARKK Job No. 23-050 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23 City of Texas City

ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUAN.
NO.

BASE BID ITEMS:

1 Pipe burst existing 6" and 8" sanitary sewer with 8.625" O.D. sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in 
place the sum of: L.F. 9,820 26.50$          260,230.00$       30.00$          294,600.00$       32.00$          314,240.00$       30.00$          294,600.00$       38.00$          373,160.00$       42.00$          412,440.00$       62.00$          608,840.00$       

2 Pipe burst existing 10" sanitary sewer with 10.75" O.D. sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place 
the sum of: L.F. 960 33.00$          31,680.00$         38.00$          36,480.00$         38.00$          36,480.00$         34.00$          32,640.00$         40.00$          38,400.00$         48.00$          46,080.00$         62.00$          59,520.00$         

3 Pipe burst existing 12" sanitary sewer with 12.75" O.D. sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place 
the sum of: L.F. 1,395 42.00$          58,590.00$         44.00$          61,380.00$         45.00$          62,775.00$         42.00$          58,590.00$         46.00$          64,170.00$         68.00$          94,860.00$         84.00$          117,180.00$       

4 Slip line existing 10" sanitary sewer with 8.625" O.D. sanitary sewer, includes grouting of annular 
space, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 565 20.00$          11,300.00$         28.00$          15,820.00$         42.00$          23,730.00$         26.00$          14,690.00$         34.00$          19,210.00$         30.00$          16,950.00$         75.00$          42,375.00$         

5 Slip line existing 12" sanitary sewer with 10.75" O.D. sanitary sewer, includes grouting of annular 
space, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 1015 23.00$          23,345.00$         33.00$          33,495.00$         45.00$          45,675.00$         30.00$          30,450.00$         38.00$          38,570.00$         35.00$          35,525.00$         69.00$          70,035.00$         

6 Cured-in-place lining of existing 6" and 8" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 740 47.00$          34,780.00$         52.00$          38,480.00$         48.50$          35,890.00$         36.00$          26,640.00$         40.00$          29,600.00$         49.00$          36,260.00$         50.00$          37,000.00$         
7 Cured-in-place lining of existing 12" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 810 60.00$          48,600.00$         73.00$          59,130.00$         78.00$          63,180.00$         48.00$          38,880.00$         61.00$          49,410.00$         62.00$          50,220.00$         59.00$          47,790.00$         
8 Cured-in-place lining of existing 15" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 1,465 75.00$          109,875.00$       92.00$          134,780.00$       92.00$          134,780.00$       84.00$          123,060.00$       71.00$          104,015.00$       80.00$          117,200.00$       67.00$          98,155.00$         
9 Cured-in-place lining of existing 18" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 1,865 87.00$          162,255.00$       112.00$        208,880.00$       115.00$        214,475.00$       120.00$        223,800.00$       87.00$          162,255.00$       95.00$          177,175.00$       90.00$          167,850.00$       

10 4"/6" service reconnections (by excavation), all depths, includes 8' of service line and cleanout at 
property line, complete in place the sum of: EA. 245 950.00$        232,750.00$       520.00$        127,400.00$       475.00$        116,375.00$       880.00$        215,600.00$       800.00$        196,000.00$       1,135.00$     278,075.00$       1,050.00$     257,250.00$       

11 Additional length of service line beyond the 8' of service line, all depths, complete in place the sum 
of: L.F. 1,400 28.00$          39,200.00$         28.00$          39,200.00$         29.00$          40,600.00$         48.00$          67,200.00$         15.00$          21,000.00$         30.00$          42,000.00$         25.00$          35,000.00$         

12 Install 4' diameter precast sanitary sewer manhole with 24" frame and cover (Cap One), up to 8' 
deep, complete in place the sum of: EA. 21 5,300.00$     111,300.00$       5,800.00$     121,800.00$       4,800.00$     100,800.00$       6,400.00$     134,400.00$       7,400.00$     155,400.00$       8,395.00$     176,295.00$       6,207.00$     130,347.00$       

13 Extra Depth for precast manhole installation over 8' deep, complete in place, the sum of: V.F. 10 250.00$        2,500.00$           250.00$        2,500.00$           300.00$        3,000.00$           400.00$        4,000.00$           300.00$        3,000.00$           425.00$        4,250.00$           871.00$        8,710.00$           
14 End of the line cleanout, complete in place, the sum of: EA. 4 2,000.00$     8,000.00$           1,500.00$     6,000.00$           1,800.00$     7,200.00$           2,400.00$     9,600.00$           2,600.00$     10,400.00$         2,895.00$     11,580.00$         1,850.00$     7,400.00$           
15 Replace manhole ring and cover to grade 24" (Cap One), complete in place the sum of: EA. 13 1,300.00$     16,900.00$         1,800.00$     23,400.00$         900.00$        11,700.00$         1,800.00$     23,400.00$         1,500.00$     19,500.00$         2,150.00$     27,950.00$         1,745.00$     22,685.00$         
16 Reset and regrout frame and cover, complete in place the sum of: EA. 1 300.00$        300.00$              1,200.00$     1,200.00$           500.00$        500.00$              1,000.00$     1,000.00$           800.00$        800.00$              1,200.00$     1,200.00$           345.00$        345.00$              
17 Manhole wall liner, 1-inch cementitious, complete in place the sum of: V.F. 170 155.00$        26,350.00$         195.00$        33,150.00$         160.00$        27,200.00$         160.00$        27,200.00$         140.00$        23,800.00$         165.00$        28,050.00$         237.00$        40,290.00$         
18 Manhole wall liner, 1-inch corrosion resistant wall liner, complete in place the sum of: V.F. 75 335.00$        25,125.00$         300.00$        22,500.00$         200.00$        15,000.00$         180.00$        13,500.00$         275.00$        20,625.00$         405.00$        30,375.00$         385.00$        28,875.00$         
19 Abandon existing sanitary sewer manhole, complete in place the sum of: EA. 3 2,000.00$     6,000.00$           980.00$        2,940.00$           800.00$        2,400.00$           1,000.00$     3,000.00$           1,200.00$     3,600.00$           1,800.00$     5,400.00$           1,172.00$     3,516.00$           

20 Cleaning and television inspection of existing 6" thru 10" diameter sanitary sewers, complete in 
place, the sum of: L.F. 745 1.80$            1,341.00$           4.25$            3,166.25$           4.00$            2,980.00$           3.50$            2,607.50$           5.00$            3,725.00$           3.75$            2,793.75$           4.00$            2,980.00$           

21 Cleaning and television inspection of existing 12" thru 18" diameter sanitary sewers, complete in 
place, the sum of: L.F. 50 2.60$            130.00$              5.00$            250.00$              6.00$            300.00$              6.00$            300.00$              30.00$          1,500.00$           10.00$          500.00$              6.00$            300.00$              

22 Trench safety system, incl. installation, operation & removal, all types of soil, all depths, complete in 
place the sum of: L.F. 1,100 1.50$            1,650.00$           1.50$            1,650.00$           1.50$            1,650.00$           1.50$            1,650.00$           5.00$            5,500.00$           1.50$            1,650.00$           2.00$            2,200.00$           

23 Miscellaneous allowance, as approved by Engineer: L.S. 1 25,000.00$   25,000.00$         25,000.00$   25,000.00$         25,000.00$   25,000.00$         25,000.00$   25,000.00$         25,000.00$   25,000.00$         25,000.00$   25,000.00$         25,000.00$   25,000.00$         
1,237,201.00$    1,293,201.25$    1,285,930.00$    1,371,807.50$    1,368,640.00$    1,621,828.75$    1,813,643.00$    

SUPPLEMENTAL BID ITEMS:
24 Abandonment of service connection, all depths, complete in place the sum of: EA. 3 150.00$        450.00$              150.00$        450.00$              150.00$        450.00$              150.00$        450.00$              500.00$        1,500.00$           150.00$        450.00$              356.00$        1,068.00$           
25 Well pointing system for manhole construction, complete in place the sum of: EA. 1 1,000.00$     1,000.00$           1,000.00$     1,000.00$           1,000.00$     1,000.00$           1,000.00$     1,000.00$           12,000.00$   12,000.00$         1,000.00$     1,000.00$           1,000.00$     1,000.00$           
26 Well pointing system for sanitary sewer service reconnections, complete in place the sum of: EA. 1 700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              9,000.00$     9,000.00$           700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              
27 Well pointing system for main, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 50 20.00$          1,000.00$           20.00$          1,000.00$           20.00$          1,000.00$           20.00$          1,000.00$           100.00$        5,000.00$           20.00$          1,000.00$           20.00$          1,000.00$           
28 Wet condition bedding for sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 50 6.00$            300.00$              6.00$            300.00$              6.00$            300.00$              6.00$            300.00$              50.00$          2,500.00$           6.00$            300.00$              8.10$            405.00$              
29 Wet condition bedding, for manhole construction, complete in place the sum of: EA. 1 700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              1,500.00$     1,500.00$           700.00$        700.00$              700.00$        700.00$              

30
Remove and replace drop connection at manhole or installation of drop connection at existing 
manhole, including all fittings, bends, associated pipe, (all depths, all pipe sizes and types), 
complete in place, the sum of:

EA. 1
1,500.00$     1,500.00$           1,500.00$     1,500.00$           2,500.00$     2,500.00$           1,500.00$     1,500.00$           3,200.00$     3,200.00$           1,500.00$     1,500.00$           1,500.00$     1,500.00$           

31 Service Reconnection by remote, all depths, all pipe sizes, complete in place the sum of: EA. 2 220.00$        440.00$              200.00$        400.00$              200.00$        400.00$              200.00$        400.00$              225.00$        450.00$              200.00$        400.00$              200.00$        400.00$              
32 Obstruction removal (by remote), all depths,  the sum of, complete in place the sum of: EA. 3 250.00$        750.00$              250.00$        750.00$              250.00$        750.00$              250.00$        750.00$              300.00$        900.00$              250.00$        750.00$              331.00$        993.00$              
33 Obstruction removal (by excavation), all depths,  the sum of, complete in place the sum of: EA. 8 850.00$        6,800.00$           850.00$        6,800.00$           1,500.00$     12,000.00$         1,000.00$     8,000.00$           900.00$        7,200.00$           850.00$        6,800.00$           1,865.00$     14,920.00$         
34 Extra length for obstruction removal (by excavation), all depths, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 25 20.00$          500.00$              20.00$          500.00$              20.00$          500.00$              20.00$          500.00$              50.00$          1,250.00$           20.00$          500.00$              154.00$        3,850.00$           
35 Point repair of 6" thru 12" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place, the sum of: EA. 1 1,250.00$     1,250.00$           1,800.00$     1,800.00$           1,250.00$     1,250.00$           1,250.00$     1,250.00$           1,850.00$     1,850.00$           1,250.00$     1,250.00$           2,191.00$     2,191.00$           
36 Extra length for point repair of 6" thru 12" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place, the sum of: L.F. 20 35.00$          700.00$              35.00$          700.00$              35.00$          700.00$              35.00$          700.00$              40.00$          800.00$              35.00$          700.00$              104.00$        2,080.00$           
37 Point repair of 15" thru 18" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place, the sum of: EA. 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$           5,200.00$     5,200.00$           3,000.00$     3,000.00$           3,000.00$     3,000.00$           3,800.00$     3,800.00$           3,000.00$     3,000.00$           3,216.00$     3,216.00$           
38 Extra length for point repair of 15" thru 18" sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in place, the sum of: L.F. 20 40.00$          800.00$              55.00$          1,100.00$           40.00$          800.00$              40.00$          800.00$              50.00$          1,000.00$           40.00$          800.00$              451.00$        9,020.00$           
39 Conflict storm sewer manhole with sump, includes steel casing, complete in place the sum of: EA 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$           3,000.00$     3,000.00$           5,000.00$     5,000.00$           3,000.00$     3,000.00$           4,400.00$     4,400.00$           3,000.00$     3,000.00$           4,779.00$     4,779.00$           

40 6" to 12" plug at manhole to abandon existing sanitary sewer line, all depths, complete in place the 
sum of: EA. 2 350.00$        700.00$              350.00$        700.00$              350.00$        700.00$              350.00$        700.00$              500.00$        1,000.00$           350.00$        700.00$              350.00$        700.00$              

41 Proposed 10" split steel casing in conflict storm manhole as directed by Engineer, complete in place 
the sum of: L.F. 20 45.00$          900.00$              45.00$          900.00$              45.00$          900.00$              90.00$          1,800.00$           100.00$        2,000.00$           45.00$          900.00$              70.11$          1,402.20$           

42 Proposed 12" split steel casing in conflict storm manhole as directed by Engineer, complete in place 
the sum of: L.F. 20 50.00$          1,000.00$           50.00$          1,000.00$           50.00$          1,000.00$           120.00$        2,400.00$           100.00$        2,000.00$           50.00$          1,000.00$           81.71$          1,634.20$           

43 Proposed 14" split steel casing in conflict storm manhole as directed by Engineer, complete in place 
the sum of: L.F. 10 55.00$          550.00$              55.00$          550.00$              55.00$          550.00$              160.00$        1,600.00$           225.00$        2,250.00$           55.00$          550.00$              129.03$        1,290.30$           

44 Remove & replace exist. asphalt pavement, complete in place the sum of: S.Y. 75 70.00$          5,250.00$           70.00$          5,250.00$           90.00$          6,750.00$           80.00$          6,000.00$           75.00$          5,625.00$           70.00$          5,250.00$           70.00$          5,250.00$           
45 Remove & replace exist. concrete pavement, complete in place the sum of: S.Y. 75 80.00$          6,000.00$           80.00$          6,000.00$           80.00$          6,000.00$           100.00$        7,500.00$           85.00$          6,375.00$           80.00$          6,000.00$           107.00$        8,025.00$           

46 Remove and replace wheelchair ramp, in conformance to ADA requirements, including sawcutting, 
reinforcement and joints, and truncated domes, complete in place the sum of: S.Y. 25 85.00$          2,125.00$           85.00$          2,125.00$           85.00$          2,125.00$           120.00$        3,000.00$           85.00$          2,125.00$           85.00$          2,125.00$           205.00$        5,125.00$           

47 Install extra cement stabilized sand backfill, complete in place the sum of: C.Y. 75 20.00$          1,500.00$           35.00$          2,625.00$           50.00$          3,750.00$           20.00$          1,500.00$           25.00$          1,875.00$           20.00$          1,500.00$           44.00$          3,300.00$           
48 Extra concrete (all classes), complete in place the sum of: C.Y. 50 80.00$          4,000.00$           80.00$          4,000.00$           80.00$          4,000.00$           80.00$          4,000.00$           80.00$          4,000.00$           80.00$          4,000.00$           163.00$        8,150.00$           
49 Remove & replace exist. conc. driveway, incl. reinforcement, complete in place the sum of: S.F. 200 8.00$            1,600.00$           8.00$            1,600.00$           8.00$            1,600.00$           10.00$          2,000.00$           20.00$          4,000.00$           8.00$            1,600.00$           28.00$          5,600.00$           
50 Remove & replace exist. conc. sidewalk, complete in place the sum of: S.F. 200 5.00$            1,000.00$           5.00$            1,000.00$           5.00$            1,000.00$           8.00$            1,600.00$           20.00$          4,000.00$           5.00$            1,000.00$           28.00$          5,600.00$           
51 Remove & replace exist. conc. curb, complete in place the sum of: L.F. 100 5.00$            500.00$              5.00$            500.00$              5.00$            500.00$              20.00$          2,000.00$           15.00$          1,500.00$           5.00$            500.00$              25.00$          2,500.00$           

48,015.00$         52,150.00$         59,925.00$         58,150.00$         93,100.00$         47,975.00$         96,398.70$         
ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1 BID ITEMS:

52 Pipe burst existing 6" and 8" sanitary sewer with 8.625" O.D. sanitary sewer, all depths, complete in 
place the sum of: L.F. 995 26.50$          26,367.50$         30.00$          29,850.00$         32.00$          31,840.00$         40.00$          39,800.00$         40.00$          39,800.00$         42.00$          41,790.00$         62.00$          61,690.00$         

53 4"/6" service reconnections (by excavation), all depths, includes 8' of service line and cleanout at 
property line, complete in place the sum of: EA. 21 950.00$        19,950.00$         520.00$        10,920.00$         475.00$        9,975.00$           880.00$        18,480.00$         820.00$        17,220.00$         1,135.00$     23,835.00$         1,050.00$     22,050.00$         

54 Install 4' diameter precast sanitary sewer manhole with 24" frame and cover (Cap One), up to 8' 
deep, complete in place the sum of: EA. 1 5,300.00$     5,300.00$           5,800.00$     5,800.00$           4,800.00$     4,800.00$           6,400.00$     6,400.00$           7,500.00$     7,500.00$           8,500.00$     8,500.00$           6,207.00$     6,207.00$           

51,617.50$         46,570.00$         46,615.00$         64,680.00$         64,520.00$         74,125.00$         89,947.00$         

1,237,201.00$    1,293,201.25$    1,285,930.00$    1,371,807.50$    1,368,640.00$    1,621,828.75$    1,813,643.00$    

48,015.00$         52,150.00$         59,925.00$         58,150.00$         93,100.00$         47,975.00$         96,398.70$         

1,285,216.00$    1,345,351.25$    1,345,855.00$    1,429,957.50$    1,461,740.00$    1,669,803.75$    1,910,041.70$    

51,617.50$         46,570.00$         46,615.00$         64,680.00$         64,520.00$         74,125.00$         89,947.00$         

1,285,216.00$    1,345,351.25$    1,345,855.00$    1,429,957.50$    1,461,740.00$    1,669,803.75$    1,910,041.70$    

MATHEMATICAL ERROR CORRECTED BY ENGINEER

TOTAL BASE BID ITEMS:

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL BID ITEMS:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1 BID ITEMS:

RECOMMENDATION:  TOTAL BASE BID + SUPPLEMENTAL:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE BID NO.1 ITEMS:

TOTAL BASE BID & SUPPLEMENTAL ITEMS:

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL ITEMS:

TOTAL BASE BID ITEMS:

LOW BIDDER

 CZ Construction, LLC  Texas Pride Utilities, LLC  Ram Rod Utilities, LLC  Lopez Utilities Contractor, 
LLC  King Solution Services, LLC  T Construction, LLC  PM Construction & Rehab, 

LLC 

Bid Date: 3/19/2024 Page 1 OF 1



  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-055 

 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND AWARD A CONTRACT FOR BID 

NO.  2024-453 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT - PHASE 

23.; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME 

EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  
 

WHEREAS, a notice to bidders was advertised on February 28, 2024, and March 06, 2024. 

Bid packets were made available to local area vendors via CIVCASTUSA; and 

 

WHEREAS, bids were received and opened on March 19, 2024, at 11:30 a.m. The lowest 

responsible bid meeting all specifications was submitted by CZ Construction, LLC., for the total bid 

amount of $1,285,216.00.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission hereby accepts the recommendation of the 

Public Works Department to select CZ Construction, LLC., for Bid No. 2024-453 Sanitary 

Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23. 

 

 SECTION 2: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the proposal with 

CZ Construction, LLC., Bid No. 2024-453 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23. 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes. 

 

SECTION 3: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to approve change orders, not to exceed 

Twenty-Five percent (25.0%) of the total contract amount, without bringing the matter before the 

City Commission. 

 

 SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

                                                     _______________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (e)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Consider and take action on a Resolution to approve the Amended and Restated Development
Agreement between the City of Texas City and Heron's Landing Development, LLC
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on a Resolution to approve the Amended and Restated
Development Agreement between the City of Texas City and Heron's Landing Development,
LLC

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The Development Agreement is being amended as follows: (1) recognizing Heron’s Landing
Development LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors; (2) changing
annexation from GCMUD 31 to GCMUD 79  and providing that consent will be given by
section as final plats are approved; (3) changing the requirement to verify the achievement of
an average home value of $200,000 from the 200th building permit to the 135th permit; (4)
changing the requirement to provide funding for a traffic signal on 25th Avenue N from the
250th building permit to the 168th building permit; (5) clarifying the Development Covenants
to specify residences to consist of masonry on three sides of the first floor of each residence;
and (6) updating the names and addresses for receipt of notices.

Heron’s Landing Subdivision is a master planned community which received preliminary
zoning approval from the City Commission on August 19, 2015, upon recommendation from
the Planning Board at its meeting on July 6, 2015. The Zoning Commission held a public
hearing on July 21, 2015, on the original application for PUD rezoning and voted 2-1 to
recommend approval to the City Commission. The original application as approved by the City
Commission proposed to develop 304 lots on 87 acres. The original application proposed a lot
mix of 39% 50ft lots, 52% 60ft lots, and 9% 70ft lots. Sections 1 and 2 have been developed in
accordance with the original PUD application as approved. These sections produced 72 lots. 
Sections 1 and 2 are not impacted by the proposed revisions to the PUD and Master Plan:
The PUD amendment is updating the original PUD application as follows: (1) recognizing
Heron’s Landing Development, LLC as the developer instead of Galveston Bay Investors as
presented in the original PUD; (2) revising the boundary of the PUD to include only the
property in which the developer has a proprietary interest as required by Texas City
Ordinances; (3) updating the Master Plan with the overall land plan attached as Exhibit C; (4)
clarifying the required amenities as provided in Exhibit D with; and updating the Development
Schedule as provided in Exhibit E. The revised application proposes to develop 204 lots on
65.4 acres. The revised Master Plan presents a lot mix which is slightly different but remains
consistent with the character of the original PUD and the sections which have already been
developed. The revised lot mix is 45% 50ft lots; 44% 60ft lots; 12% 70ft lots. See comparison
on Exhibit F.  The revised Master Plan is adding a detention pond with green space and a
playground with play feature. The original PUD provided for only 1.2710 acres open space



located in the area which is being designated Section 4 of the revised Master Plan. The open
space is being reduced to approximate 0.5-acre open space in Section 4, but an additional
approximate 10.2 acres of park space is being added to include the detention pond and a few
small future reserves. The density of the amended PUD is calculated as 3.1 lots/acre which is
less than the density of 3.5 lots/acre in the original PUD. 
 

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Board voted at its regular meeting on February 19, 2024 (4-0) to recommend
approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update and amendment to the
Development Agreement. 

The Zoning Commission held a public hearing and voted at its regular meeting on March 5,
2024 (4-0) to recommend approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update and
amendment to the Development Agreement to the City Commission.  

Staff comments have been addressed and there are no objections presented to the approval
of the amendments to the PUD and Development agreement and update of the Master
Plan. The amendments to the PUD application and to the Development Agreement are
updating both to current conditions and reconciling to the current ordinances. The
amendments maintain the character of the PUD as originally approved and remain consistent
with the expectations presented to the current residential owners residing in Sections 1 and 2.
The amendments are also updating and clarifying the amenities to be provided and scheduled
for the same.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Amended and Restated Development Agreement - signed 
PB 02-19-24 Staff Memo & Exhibits - Herons Landing Amendments 
Resolution 





































































































Original Land Plan (Masterplan) attached to Development Agreement - Dated 03/04/2022



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-056 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO APPROVE THE 

AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY AND HERON'S LANDING DEVELOPMENT, 

LLC; PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 

FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board voted at its regular meeting on February 19, 2024, (4-0) to 

recommend approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update, and amendment to the 

Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Commission held a public hearing and voted at its regular meeting 

on March 5, 2024 (4-0) to recommend approval of the Amendment to the PUD, Master Plan update, 

and amendment to the Development Agreement to the City Commission; and 

WHEREAS, Staff comments have been addressed and there are no objections presented to 

the approval of the amendments to the PUD and Development agreement and update of the Master 

Plan. The amendments to the PUD application and to the Development Agreement are updating 

both current conditions and reconciling them with the current ordinances. The amendments 

maintain the character of the PUD as originally approved and remain consistent with the 

expectations presented to the current residential owners residing in Sections 1 and 2. The 

amendments also update and clarify the amenities to be provided and scheduled for the same. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, authorizes the 

Mayor to approve the Amended and Restated Development Agreement between the City of Texas 

City and Heron's Landing Development, LLC in substantially the same form as Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes.   

SECTION 2:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

________________________ 

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

       City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________   _______________________       

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (f)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Bid No. 2024-452 Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and award a contract for bid number 2024-452 Water Line Replacement Project -
Phase 21

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
A notice to bidders was published on February 28, 2024, and again March 06, 2024. Bid
packets were made available to local area vendors via CIVCASTUSA. Bids were received and
opened on March 19, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. The lowest responsible bidder meeting all
specifications is Lopez Utilities Contractor, LLC., from South Houston Texas, for the total
amount bid $1,655,668.00.

Funds are made available via the City of Texas City 2023/2024 Annual Budget
501705-55690-70521.  

A letter of recommendation and bid tabulation are attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to award bid number 2024-452 to
Lopez Utilities Contractor, LLC., for the total bid amount of $1,655,668.00, and that the Mayor
be authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City Commission. It is further
recommended that the Mayor be authorized to approve change orders, not to exceed 25% of
the total contract price, without taking the matter before the City Commission.

Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Resolution 







ARKK Job No. 23-049 Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21 City of Texas City

ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUAN.
NO.

BASE BID ITEMS:
1 2" PVC, Class 200 (SDR 21) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 90 32.00$          2,880.00$                20.00$          1,800.00$                25.00$          2,250.00$                26.00$          2,340.00$                35.00$          3,150.00$                40.00$          3,600.00$                25.00$          2,250.00$                18.00$          1,620.00$                60.00$                5,400.00$                
2 6" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 130 40.00$          5,200.00$                38.00$          4,940.00$                62.00$          8,060.00$                65.00$          8,450.00$                82.00$          10,660.00$              60.00$          7,800.00$                46.00$          5,980.00$                61.50$          7,995.00$                92.00$                11,960.00$              
3 8" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 15,120 46.00$          695,520.00$            59.00$          892,080.00$            67.00$          1,013,040.00$         68.00$          1,028,160.00$         69.00$          1,043,280.00$         66.00$          997,920.00$            62.00$          937,440.00$            63.50$          960,120.00$            78.00$                1,179,360.00$         
4 8" PVC Certa-Lok, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 100 50.00$          5,000.00$                59.00$          5,900.00$                90.00$          9,000.00$                75.00$          7,500.00$                121.00$        12,100.00$              77.00$          7,700.00$                46.00$          4,600.00$                59.50$          5,950.00$                188.00$              18,800.00$              
5 2" Resilient Seated Gate Valve with Box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 900.00$        900.00$                   300.00$        300.00$                   850.00$        850.00$                   1,200.00$     1,200.00$                800.00$        800.00$                   1,000.00$     1,000.00$                2,100.00$     2,100.00$                1,136.50$     1,136.50$                1,000.00$           1,000.00$                
6 6" Resilient Seated Gate Valve with Box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 1,800.00$     1,800.00$                2,000.00$     2,000.00$                1,450.00$     1,450.00$                2,100.00$     2,100.00$                1,500.00$     1,500.00$                2,000.00$     2,000.00$                3,300.00$     3,300.00$                2,194.00$     2,194.00$                1,500.00$           1,500.00$                
7 8" Resilient Seated Gate Valve with Box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 27 2,400.00$     64,800.00$              2,400.00$     64,800.00$              1,880.00$     50,760.00$              2,800.00$     75,600.00$              2,200.00$     59,400.00$              2,200.00$     59,400.00$              2,199.00$     59,373.00$              3,126.00$     84,402.00$              2,300.00$           62,100.00$              
8 Fire Hydrant Assembly Installed on New Water Main, Including Gate Valve and Lead Pipe, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 25 5,800.00$     145,000.00$            5,800.00$     145,000.00$            5,280.00$     132,000.00$            7,000.00$     175,000.00$            7,200.00$     180,000.00$            6,900.00$     172,500.00$            6,200.00$     155,000.00$            9,056.50$     226,412.50$            6,600.00$           165,000.00$            

9 Fire Hydrant Assembly Installed on Existing Water Main (Cut-in), Including Gate Valve and Lead Pipe, Complete in Place, the Sum 
of:

EA. 4 6,500.00$     26,000.00$              6,000.00$     24,000.00$              7,250.00$     29,000.00$              7,900.00$     31,600.00$              10,000.00$   40,000.00$              11,000.00$   44,000.00$              6,520.00$     26,080.00$              10,324.50$   41,298.00$              7,000.00$           28,000.00$              
10 Remove and Salvage Existing Fire Hydrants, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 5 500.00$        2,500.00$                150.00$        750.00$                   250.00$        1,250.00$                500.00$        2,500.00$                300.00$        1,500.00$                500.00$        2,500.00$                250.00$        1,250.00$                250.00$        1,250.00$                400.00$              2,000.00$                
11 Remove and Dispose of Valve Box and Abandon Existing Valves, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 11 600.00$        6,600.00$                150.00$        1,650.00$                150.00$        1,650.00$                400.00$        4,400.00$                100.00$        1,100.00$                200.00$        2,200.00$                250.00$        2,750.00$                100.00$        1,100.00$                300.00$              3,300.00$                
12 2" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 4 1,800.00$     7,200.00$                300.00$        1,200.00$                325.00$        1,300.00$                500.00$        2,000.00$                750.00$        3,000.00$                500.00$        2,000.00$                1,500.00$     6,000.00$                3.00$            12.00$                     800.00$              3,200.00$                
13 6" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 6 2,400.00$     14,400.00$              800.00$        4,800.00$                850.00$        5,100.00$                1,200.00$     7,200.00$                1,600.00$     9,600.00$                1,000.00$     6,000.00$                1,800.00$     10,800.00$              447.50$        2,685.00$                1,200.00$           7,200.00$                
14 8" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 22 2,800.00$     61,600.00$              1,000.00$     22,000.00$              1,250.00$     27,500.00$              1,800.00$     39,600.00$              1,700.00$     37,400.00$              1,100.00$     24,200.00$              2,550.00$     56,100.00$              647.00$        14,234.00$              1,500.00$           33,000.00$              
15 2" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 15 800.00$        12,000.00$              150.00$        2,250.00$                250.00$        3,750.00$                400.00$        6,000.00$                600.00$        9,000.00$                100.00$        1,500.00$                400.00$        6,000.00$                200.00$        3,000.00$                219.00$              3,285.00$                
16 4" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 850.00$        850.00$                   300.00$        300.00$                   450.00$        450.00$                   400.00$        400.00$                   1,000.00$     1,000.00$                500.00$        500.00$                   700.00$        700.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   300.00$              300.00$                   
17 6" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 11 875.00$        9,625.00$                450.00$        4,950.00$                850.00$        9,350.00$                500.00$        5,500.00$                1,200.00$     13,200.00$              500.00$        5,500.00$                620.00$        6,820.00$                800.00$        8,800.00$                328.00$              3,608.00$                
18 8" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 5 950.00$        4,750.00$                700.00$        3,500.00$                1,250.00$     6,250.00$                600.00$        3,000.00$                1,300.00$     6,500.00$                600.00$        3,000.00$                770.00$        3,850.00$                1,000.00$     5,000.00$                390.00$              1,950.00$                
19 8" Plug with 2" Male Tap, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 4 1,200.00$     4,800.00$                650.00$        2,600.00$                850.00$        3,400.00$                800.00$        3,200.00$                300.00$        1,200.00$                600.00$        2,400.00$                700.00$        2,800.00$                399.00$        1,596.00$                424.00$              1,696.00$                
20 8" Plug and Clamp, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 850.00$        2,550.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                650.00$        1,950.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                300.00$        900.00$                   600.00$        1,800.00$                770.00$        2,310.00$                500.00$        1,500.00$                680.00$              2,040.00$                
21 Short Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 193 650.00$        125,450.00$            750.00$        144,750.00$            750.00$        144,750.00$            475.00$        91,675.00$              500.00$        96,500.00$              700.00$        135,100.00$            960.00$        185,280.00$            888.00$        171,384.00$            1,280.00$           247,040.00$            
22 Long Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 65 675.00$        43,875.00$              950.00$        61,750.00$              1,050.00$     68,250.00$              700.00$        45,500.00$              650.00$        42,250.00$              850.00$        55,250.00$              1,260.00$     81,900.00$              520.00$        33,800.00$              1,400.00$           91,000.00$              
23 Removal and Replacement of Existing Concrete Sidewalk, Complete in Place, the Sum of: S.Y. 200 95.00$          19,000.00$              75.00$          15,000.00$              72.00$          14,400.00$              80.00$          16,000.00$              75.00$          15,000.00$              80.00$          16,000.00$              120.00$        24,000.00$              165.00$        33,000.00$              120.00$              24,000.00$              
24 Removal and Replacement of Existing Concrete Pavement, Complete in Place, the Sum of: S.Y. 70 140.00$        9,800.00$                150.00$        10,500.00$              108.00$        7,560.00$                120.00$        8,400.00$                130.00$        9,100.00$                200.00$        14,000.00$              100.00$        7,000.00$                185.00$        12,950.00$              135.00$              9,450.00$                
25 Removal and Replacement of Existing Asphalt Pavement, Complete in Place, the Sum of: S.Y. 50 120.00$        6,000.00$                85.00$          4,250.00$                85.00$          4,250.00$                110.00$        5,500.00$                70.00$          3,500.00$                30.00$          1,500.00$                180.00$        9,000.00$                160.00$        8,000.00$                125.00$              6,250.00$                
26 Inlet Protection Barrier, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 16 300.00$        4,800.00$                100.00$        1,600.00$                50.00$          800.00$                   100.00$        1,600.00$                100.00$        1,600.00$                75.00$          1,200.00$                50.00$          800.00$                   60.00$          960.00$                   350.00$              5,600.00$                
27 Trench Safety System for All Water Mains, Greater than 5-Feet Deep, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 3,000 1.00$            3,000.00$                0.01$            30.00$                     1.00$            3,000.00$                1.00$            3,000.00$                0.01$            30.00$                     0.10$            300.00$                   1.00$            3,000.00$                0.10$            300.00$                   1.00$                  3,000.00$                
28 Miscellaneous Allowance for which Approved by the City ($25,000.00), Complete in Place, the Sum of: AL. 1 25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$   25,000.00$              25,000.00$         25,000.00$              

1,310,900.00$         1,450,100.00$         1,576,370.00$         1,604,225.00$         1,628,270.00$         1,595,870.00$         1,631,483.00$         1,656,199.00$         1,946,039.00$         
SUPPLEMENTAL BID ITEMS:

29 Extra Concrete, Complete in Place, the Sum of: C.Y. 50 60.00$          3,000.00$                60.00$          3,000.00$                60.00$          3,000.00$                60.00$          3,000.00$                60.00$          3,000.00$                100.00$        5,000.00$                60.00$          3,000.00$                60.00$          3,000.00$                140.00$              7,000.00$                
30 Wet Condition Bedding, All Sizes, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 50 5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   10.00$          500.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   100.00$              5,000.00$                
31 Installation and Removal of Piezometers, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 7 100.00$        700.00$                   100.00$        700.00$                   100.00$        700.00$                   200.00$        1,400.00$                100.00$        700.00$                   100.00$        700.00$                   100.00$        700.00$                   100.00$        700.00$                   100.00$              700.00$                   
32 Extra Cement Stabilized Sand, Complete in Place, the Sum of; C.Y. 50 50.00$          2,500.00$                15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   30.00$          1,500.00$                15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   30.00$                1,500.00$                
33 Extra Bank Sand, Complete in Place, the Sum of; C.Y. 50 15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   15.00$          750.00$                   25.00$                1,250.00$                
34 Extra 1" Polyethylene Service Tubing, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 200 4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$            800.00$                   4.00$                  800.00$                   
35 Extra 2" Polyethylene Service Tubing, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 50 5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   10.00$          500.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   7.00$            350.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$            250.00$                   5.00$                  250.00$                   
36 Solid Sheet Shoring Ordered Left in Place for All Sizes, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 100 10.00$          1,000.00$                10.00$          1,000.00$                10.00$          1,000.00$                10.00$          1,000.00$                10.00$          1,000.00$                20.00$          2,000.00$                10.00$          1,000.00$                10.00$          1,000.00$                20.00$                2,000.00$                
37 Well Pointing System, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 5 1,500.00$     7,500.00$                1,500.00$     7,500.00$                1,500.00$     7,500.00$                1,500.00$     7,500.00$                1,500.00$     7,500.00$                2,500.00$     12,500.00$              1,500.00$     7,500.00$                1,500.00$     7,500.00$                1,599.00$           7,995.00$                
38 Brace, Support, and Protect Utility Structures, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 500.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   1,500.00$     1,500.00$                500.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   1,200.00$           1,200.00$                
39 2" Long Side Water Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 2,000.00$     2,000.00$                750.00$        750.00$                   750.00$        750.00$                   950.00$        950.00$                   2,200.00$     2,200.00$                2,500.00$     2,500.00$                750.00$        750.00$                   750.00$        750.00$                   1,900.00$           1,900.00$                
40 2" Short Side Water Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 600.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   1,700.00$     1,700.00$                1,500.00$     1,500.00$                600.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   1,700.00$           1,700.00$                
41 1.5" Long Side Water Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 1,200.00$     1,200.00$                600.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   1,000.00$     1,000.00$                1,850.00$     1,850.00$                2,200.00$     2,200.00$                600.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   1,800.00$           1,800.00$                
42 1.5" Short Side Water Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 950.00$        950.00$                   550.00$        550.00$                   550.00$        550.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   1,400.00$     1,400.00$                1,200.00$     1,200.00$                550.00$        550.00$                   550.00$        550.00$                   1,600.00$           1,600.00$                
43 1.5" Sch 40 PVC Water Line, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 25 20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$          500.00$                   20.00$                500.00$                   
44 2" Sch 40 PVC Water Line, Complete in Place, the Sum of; L.F. 25 25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$          625.00$                   25.00$                625.00$                   

45 Installation of New 'Single' Water Meter and Box (Meter Provided by the City as Needed), Including Removal and Salvage Existing 
Water Meters, All Fittings and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of;

EA. 3 5,600.00$     16,800.00$              250.00$        750.00$                   250.00$        750.00$                   750.00$        2,250.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                400.00$        1,200.00$                250.00$        750.00$                   250.00$        750.00$                   250.00$              750.00$                   

46 Installation of New 'Double' Water Meter and Box (Meter Provided by the City as Needed), Including Removal and Salvage Existing 
Water Meters, All Fittings and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of;

EA. 3 500.00$        1,500.00$                275.00$        825.00$                   275.00$        825.00$                   950.00$        2,850.00$                1,300.00$     3,900.00$                400.00$        1,200.00$                275.00$        825.00$                   275.00$        825.00$                   275.00$              825.00$                   
41,425.00$              20,700.00$              20,700.00$              25,825.00$              30,075.00$              36,525.00$              20,700.00$              20,700.00$              37,395.00$              

ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1 BID ITEMS:
47 6" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 20 400.00$        8,000.00$                38.00$          760.00$                   62.00$          1,240.00$                65.00$          1,300.00$                57.00$          1,140.00$                60.00$          1,200.00$                46.00$          920.00$                   61.50$          1,230.00$                82.00$                1,640.00$                
48 8" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 490 46.00$          22,540.00$              59.00$          28,910.00$              67.00$          32,830.00$              70.00$          34,300.00$              71.00$          34,790.00$              77.00$          37,730.00$              62.00$          30,380.00$              63.50$          31,115.00$              65.00$                31,850.00$              
49 8" Resilient Seated Gate Valve with Box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 2,400.00$     2,400.00$                2,200.00$     2,200.00$                1,880.00$     1,880.00$                3,000.00$     3,000.00$                2,200.00$     2,200.00$                2,200.00$     2,200.00$                2,199.00$     2,199.00$                3,126.00$     3,126.00$                2,300.00$           2,300.00$                
50 6" x 6" Tapping Sleeve and Valve with box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 5,500.00$     5,500.00$                3,800.00$     3,800.00$                3,400.00$     3,400.00$                3,500.00$     3,500.00$                5,000.00$     5,000.00$                5,000.00$     5,000.00$                6,000.00$     6,000.00$                6,000.00$     6,000.00$                9,000.00$           9,000.00$                
51 Fire Hydrant Assembly Installed on New Water Main, Including Gate Valve and Lead Pipe, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 5,800.00$     5,800.00$                6,000.00$     6,000.00$                5,280.00$     5,280.00$                7,000.00$     7,000.00$                7,200.00$     7,200.00$                6,900.00$     6,900.00$                6,200.00$     6,200.00$                9,056.50$     9,056.50$                6,500.00$           6,500.00$                
52 8" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 2,800.00$     2,800.00$                1,200.00$     1,200.00$                1,250.00$     1,250.00$                1,200.00$     1,200.00$                1,700.00$     1,700.00$                1,200.00$     1,200.00$                2,550.00$     2,550.00$                647.00$        647.00$                   1,300.00$           1,300.00$                
53 2" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 2 800.00$        1,600.00$                300.00$        600.00$                   250.00$        500.00$                   400.00$        800.00$                   600.00$        1,200.00$                200.00$        400.00$                   400.00$        800.00$                   200.00$        400.00$                   250.00$              500.00$                   
54 Short Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 6 650.00$        3,900.00$                750.00$        4,500.00$                750.00$        4,500.00$                475.00$        2,850.00$                500.00$        3,000.00$                800.00$        4,800.00$                960.00$        5,760.00$                888.00$        5,328.00$                1,200.00$           7,200.00$                
55 Long Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 5 675.00$        3,375.00$                950.00$        4,750.00$                1,050.00$     5,250.00$                700.00$        3,500.00$                650.00$        3,250.00$                950.00$        4,750.00$                1,260.00$     6,300.00$                520.00$        2,600.00$                1,300.00$           6,500.00$                
56 Removal and Replacement of Existing Asphalt Pavement, Complete in Place, the Sum of: S.Y. 15 120.00$        1,800.00$                85.00$          1,275.00$                85.00$          1,275.00$                110.00$        1,650.00$                70.00$          1,050.00$                200.00$        3,000.00$                180.00$        2,700.00$                160.00$        2,400.00$                123.00$              1,845.00$                

57,715.00$              53,995.00$              57,405.00$              59,100.00$              60,530.00$              67,180.00$              63,809.00$              61,902.50$              68,635.00$              
ADD ALTERNATE NO. 2 BID ITEMS:

57 6" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 20 40.00$          800.00$                   38.00$          760.00$                   62.00$          1,240.00$                65.00$          1,300.00$                57.00$          1,140.00$                60.00$          1,200.00$                46.00$          920.00$                   61.50$          1,230.00$                82.00$                1,640.00$                
58 8" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 690 46.00$          31,740.00$              59.00$          40,710.00$              67.00$          46,230.00$              70.00$          48,300.00$              71.00$          48,990.00$              77.00$          53,130.00$              62.00$          42,780.00$              63.50$          43,815.00$              65.00$                44,850.00$              
59 8" Resilient Seated Gate Valve with Box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 2,400.00$     7,200.00$                2,200.00$     6,600.00$                1,880.00$     5,640.00$                3,000.00$     9,000.00$                2,200.00$     6,600.00$                2,200.00$     6,600.00$                2,199.00$     6,597.00$                3,126.00$     9,378.00$                2,300.00$           6,900.00$                
60 6" x 6" Tapping Sleeve and Valve with box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 5,500.00$     5,500.00$                3,800.00$     3,800.00$                4,500.00$     4,500.00$                3,500.00$     3,500.00$                5,000.00$     5,000.00$                5,000.00$     5,000.00$                6,000.00$     6,000.00$                6,000.00$     6,000.00$                9,000.00$           9,000.00$                
61 Fire Hydrant Assembly Installed on New Water Main, Including Gate Valve and Lead Pipe, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 2 5,800.00$     11,600.00$              6,000.00$     12,000.00$              5,280.00$     10,560.00$              7,000.00$     14,000.00$              7,200.00$     14,400.00$              6,900.00$     13,800.00$              6,200.00$     12,400.00$              9,056.50$     18,113.00$              6,500.00$           13,000.00$              
62 Remove and Salvage Existing Fire Hydrants, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 500.00$        500.00$                   150.00$        150.00$                   250.00$        250.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   300.00$        300.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   250.00$        250.00$                   400.00$              400.00$                   
63 Remove and Dispose of Valve Box and Abandon Existing Valves, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 2 600.00$        1,200.00$                150.00$        300.00$                   150.00$        300.00$                   400.00$        800.00$                   100.00$        200.00$                   200.00$        400.00$                   500.00$        1,000.00$                100.00$        200.00$                   300.00$              600.00$                   
64 8" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 2 2,800.00$     5,600.00$                1,200.00$     2,400.00$                1,250.00$     2,500.00$                1,200.00$     2,400.00$                1,700.00$     3,400.00$                1,200.00$     2,400.00$                2,550.00$     5,100.00$                647.00$        1,294.00$                1,300.00$           2,600.00$                
65 6" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 875.00$        875.00$                   600.00$        600.00$                   850.00$        850.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   1,200.00$     1,200.00$                600.00$        600.00$                   620.00$        620.00$                   800.00$        800.00$                   300.00$              300.00$                   
66 8" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 950.00$        2,850.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                1,250.00$     3,750.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                1,300.00$     3,900.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                770.00$        2,310.00$                1,000.00$     3,000.00$                450.00$              1,350.00$                
67 Short Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 6 650.00$        3,900.00$                750.00$        4,500.00$                750.00$        4,500.00$                475.00$        2,850.00$                500.00$        3,000.00$                800.00$        4,800.00$                960.00$        5,760.00$                888.00$        5,328.00$                1,200.00$           7,200.00$                
68 Long Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 10 675.00$        6,750.00$                950.00$        9,500.00$                1,050.00$     10,500.00$              700.00$        7,000.00$                650.00$        6,500.00$                950.00$        9,500.00$                1,260.00$     12,600.00$              520.00$        5,200.00$                1,300.00$           13,000.00$              
69 Removal and Replacement of Existing Asphalt Pavement, Complete in Place, the Sum of: S.Y. 30 120.00$        3,600.00$                85.00$          2,550.00$                85.00$          2,550.00$                110.00$        3,300.00$                70.00$          2,100.00$                30.00$          900.00$                   180.00$        5,400.00$                160.00$        4,800.00$                125.00$              3,750.00$                

82,115.00$              86,270.00$              93,370.00$              95,250.00$              96,730.00$              100,630.00$            101,987.00$            99,408.00$              104,590.00$            
ADD ALTERNATE NO. 3 BID ITEMS:

70 6" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 70 40.00$          2,800.00$                38.00$          2,660.00$                62.00$          4,340.00$                65.00$          4,550.00$                89.00$          6,230.00$                60.00$          4,200.00$                46.00$          3,220.00$                61.50$          4,305.00$                82.00$                5,740.00$                
71 8" PVC C-900, Class 235 (DR 18) Waterline by Augered Construction, All Depths, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 1,920 46.00$          88,320.00$              59.00$          113,280.00$            67.00$          128,640.00$            68.00$          130,560.00$            75.00$          144,000.00$            77.00$          147,840.00$            62.00$          119,040.00$            63.50$          121,920.00$            66.00$                126,720.00$            
72 8" Resilient Seated Gate Valve with Box, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 8 46.00$          368.00$                   2,200.00$     17,600.00$              1,880.00$     15,040.00$              3,000.00$     24,000.00$              2,200.00$     17,600.00$              2,200.00$     17,600.00$              2,199.00$     17,592.00$              3,126.00$     25,008.00$              2,300.00$           18,400.00$              
73 Fire Hydrant Assembly Installed on New Water Main, Including Gate Valve and Lead Pipe, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 5,800.00$     17,400.00$              6,000.00$     18,000.00$              5,280.00$     15,840.00$              7,000.00$     21,000.00$              7,200.00$     21,600.00$              6,900.00$     20,700.00$              6,200.00$     18,600.00$              9,056.50$     27,169.50$              6,500.00$           19,500.00$              
74 Remove and Salvage Existing Fire Hydrants, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 2 500.00$        1,000.00$                150.00$        300.00$                   250.00$        500.00$                   500.00$        1,000.00$                300.00$        600.00$                   500.00$        1,000.00$                500.00$        1,000.00$                250.00$        500.00$                   400.00$              800.00$                   
75 Remove and Dispose of Valve Box and Abandon Existing Valves, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 600.00$        600.00$                   150.00$        150.00$                   150.00$        150.00$                   400.00$        400.00$                   100.00$        100.00$                   200.00$        200.00$                   500.00$        500.00$                   100.00$        100.00$                   300.00$              300.00$                   
76 6" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 2,400.00$     7,200.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                850.00$        2,550.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                1,600.00$     4,800.00$                1,200.00$     3,600.00$                1,800.00$     5,400.00$                447.50$        1,342.50$                1,200.00$           3,600.00$                
77 8" Wet Connection, Including Coupling and Appurtenances, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 2,800.00$     8,400.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                1,250.00$     3,750.00$                1,200.00$     3,600.00$                1,700.00$     5,100.00$                1,200.00$     3,600.00$                2,550.00$     7,650.00$                647.00$        1,941.00$                1,300.00$           3,900.00$                
78 6" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 875.00$        2,625.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                850.00$        2,550.00$                500.00$        1,500.00$                1,200.00$     3,600.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                620.00$        1,860.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                300.00$              900.00$                   
79 8" Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing Waterline, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 3 950.00$        2,850.00$                800.00$        2,400.00$                1,250.00$     3,750.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                1,300.00$     3,900.00$                600.00$        1,800.00$                770.00$        2,310.00$                1,000.00$     3,000.00$                450.00$              1,350.00$                
80 8" Plug and Clamp, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 2 850.00$        1,700.00$                500.00$        1,000.00$                650.00$        1,300.00$                900.00$        1,800.00$                300.00$        600.00$                   600.00$        1,200.00$                1,200.00$     2,400.00$                500.00$        1,000.00$                600.00$              1,200.00$                
81 Short Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 44 650.00$        28,600.00$              750.00$        33,000.00$              750.00$        33,000.00$              475.00$        20,900.00$              350.00$        15,400.00$              800.00$        35,200.00$              960.00$        42,240.00$              888.00$        39,072.00$              1,200.00$           52,800.00$              
82 2" Long Side Service, Complete in Place, the Sum of: EA. 1 1,500.00$     1,500.00$                950.00$        950.00$                   2,450.00$     2,450.00$                1,200.00$     1,200.00$                2,200.00$     2,200.00$                2,500.00$     2,500.00$                9,000.00$     9,000.00$                520.00$        520.00$                   1,600.00$           1,600.00$                
83 Extra 2" Polyethylene Service Tubing, Complete in Place, the Sum of: L.F. 30 5.00$            150.00$                   15.00$          450.00$                   20.00$          600.00$                   20.00$          600.00$                   20.00$          600.00$                   25.00$          750.00$                   5.00$            150.00$                   5.00$            150.00$                   5.00$                  150.00$                   

163,513.00$            195,790.00$            214,460.00$            215,310.00$            226,330.00$            241,990.00$            230,962.00$            228,428.00$            236,960.00$            

1,310,900.00$         1,450,100.00$         1,576,370.00$         1,604,225.00$         1,628,270.00$         1,595,870.00$         1,631,483.00$         1,656,199.00$         1,946,039.00$         

41,425.00$              20,700.00$              20,700.00$              25,825.00$              30,075.00$              36,525.00$              20,700.00$              20,700.00$              37,395.00$              

1,352,325.00$         1,470,800.00$         1,597,070.00$         1,630,050.00$         1,658,345.00$         1,632,395.00$         1,652,183.00$         1,676,899.00$         1,983,434.00$         

57,715.00$              53,995.00$              57,405.00$              59,100.00$              60,530.00$              67,180.00$              63,809.00$              61,902.50$              68,635.00$              

82,115.00$              86,270.00$              93,370.00$              95,250.00$              96,730.00$              100,630.00$            101,987.00$            99,408.00$              104,590.00$            

163,513.00$            195,790.00$            214,460.00$            215,310.00$            226,330.00$            241,990.00$            230,962.00$            228,428.00$            236,960.00$            

1,655,668.00$    1,806,855.00$    1,962,305.00$    1,999,710.00$    2,041,935.00$    2,042,195.00$    2,048,941.00$    2,066,637.50$    2,393,619.00$    
MATHEMATICAL ERROR CORRECTED BY ENGINEER

 Nerie Brothers Construction LLC.  ISJ Underground Utilities, LLC.   Texkota Enterprises, LLC.   MetroCity, LLC.  Bull-G Construction, LLC.  Branch Construction Group, LLC.   Scohil Construction Services, 
LLC.   Lopez Utilities Contractor, LLC. 

LOW BIDDER

 McKinney Construction, Inc 

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 3 BID ITEMS:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 2 BID ITEMS:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1 BID ITEMS:

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL BID ITEMS:

TOTAL BASE BID ITEMS:

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL BID ITEMS:

TOTAL BASE BID ITEMS:

RECOMMENDATION:  BASE + SUPPLEMENTAL + ADD ALT. 1 + ADD ALT. 2 + ADD ALT. 3:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 3 BID ITEMS:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 2 BID ITEMS:

TOTAL ADD ALTERNATE NO. 1 BID ITEMS:

TOTAL BASE BID & SUPPLEMENTAL BID ITEMS:

Bid Date: 3/19/2024 Page 1 OF 1



  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-057 

 

A RESOLUTION SELECTING LOPEZ UTILITIES CONTRACTOR, LLC. 

FOR BID NO. 2024-452 WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT - PHASE 

21; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME 

EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  
 

WHEREAS, a notice to bidders was published on February 28, 2024, and again March 06, 

2024. Bid packets were made available to local area vendors via CIVCASTUSA.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Bids were received and opened on March 19, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. The lowest 

responsible bidder meeting all specifications is Lopez Utilities Contractor, LLC., from South 

Houston Texas, for the total amount bid $1,655,668.00.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission hereby accepts the recommendation of the 

Public Works Department to select Lopez Utilities Contractor, LLC., for Bid No. 2024-452 

Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21. 

 

 SECTION 2: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the proposal with Lopez 

Utilities Contractor, LLC., for Bid No. 2024-452 Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes. 

 

SECTION 3: That the Mayor is hereby authorized to approve change orders, not to exceed 

Twenty-Five percent (25.0%) of the total contract amount, without bringing the matter before the 

City Commission. 

 

 SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

                                                     _______________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (g)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Long-term lease at Shoal Point
Submitted For: Kyle Dickson, City Attorney Office 
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Attorney Office

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a long-term lease for certain real property
commonly known as Shoal Point 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
A Request for Proposals #2024-451 was posted on February 13, 2024.  On March 7, 2024,
the proposals that were received were opened and read aloud.  The only proposal that was
received was from Galveston LNG Bunker Port LLC.  Their proposal met all the requirements
of the Request for Proposals for the long-term lease of a portion of real property at Shoal
Point.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the City Commission accept the proposal for a long-term lease that was
submitted by Galveston LNG Bunker Port, LLC., and award a long-term lease to Galveston
LNG Bunker Port.  Furthermore, it is recommended the Mayor be Authorized to enter into the
lease for certain real property commonly known as Shoal Point per the terms and conditions
as outlined in the Request for Proposal #2024-451.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-058 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A 

LONG-TERM LEASE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY COMMONLY 

KNOWN AS SHOAL POINT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 

PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposals No. 2024-451 was posted on February 13, 2024.  

On March 7, 2024, the proposals that were received were opened and read aloud.  The only 

proposal that was received was from Galveston LNG Bunker Port LLC.  Their proposal met all 

the requirements of the Request for Proposals for the long-term lease of a portion of real property 

at Shoal Point; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the City Commission accept the proposal for a long-term 

lease submitted by Galveston LNG Bunker Port, LLC., and award a long-term lease to Galveston 

LNG Bunker Port.  Furthermore, it is recommended the Mayor be authorized to enter into the 

lease for certain real property commonly known as Shoal Point, per the terms and conditions as 

outlined in the Request for Proposal No. 2024-451. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission hereby accepts awarding Request for Proposal 

No. 2024-451 to Galveston LNG Bunker Port LLC. 

 

SECTION 2: The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a long-term lease for certain 

real property commonly known as Shoal Point. 

 

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor   

       City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

___________________________   ____________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (h)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Bid # 2024-003 Delivered Hot and Warm Mix Asphalt Annual Contract
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and award a contract for Bid # 2024-004 Delivered Hot and Warm Mix Asphalt
Annual Contract.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On March 13, 2024, and March 20, 2024, the Notice To Bidders was published in the
Galveston County Daily News, and bid packets were sent out to local area vendors. Bids were
opened on March 27, 2024, at 10 A.M.  The lowest responsible bidder meeting all the
qualifications was Texas Materials Group, Inc. dba, Gulf Coast in Baytown, Texas.
As this is an annual contract for road construction materials, the total quantities listed are for
bid comparison only. There are no minimum or maximum quantities guaranteed in this
contract.  Materials are to be purchased on an "as needed basis".

Funding for this item is included in the FY 2023/2024 Public Works Budget.

A bid tabulation is attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to award Bid # 2024-003 Delivered
Hot and Warm Mix Asphalt Annual Contract to Texas Materials Group, Inc. dba Gulf Coast, for
the prices bid, and that the Mayor be authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the City
Commission.

Thank you.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 



City of Texas City 

BID TABULATION 

 2024-003 DELIVERED HOT AND WARM MIX ASPHALT 

Bid Opening: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 at 10 a.m. 

BIDDER 

Vulcan Materials 

Texas Materials 
Group 
dba: 

Gulf Coast 
TYPE “D” 
HOT MIX 
2000 tons 

$107.25 

$214,500.00 

$95.00 

$190,000.00 
TYPE “D” 

WARM MIX 
2000 tons 

$107.25 

$214,500.00 

$95.00 

$190,000.00 
TYPE “A”  

BLACK BASE 
2500 tons 

$103.25 

$258,125.00 

$90.00 

$225.000.00 

Totals $687,125.00 $605,000.00 

* Totals expressed here are for comparison only. There are 
no guaranteed minimums or maximums on annual contracts



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (i)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Adopt Policies and Procedures Regarding Civil Rights for Federally Assisted Programs & Activities
Submitted For: Dedrick Johnson, Mayor's Office 
Submitted By: Titilayo Smith, Community Development/ Grant Admin
Department: Mayor's Office

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Discuss, consider, and adopt this resolution regarding Civil Rights policies and procedures as
required when federal funding is received and utilized by the City.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 109 of the Title I of the Housing and Community
Development Act. (24 CFR 6); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101-6107); and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and for construction contracts greater than
$10,000, must take actions to ensure that no person or group is denied benefits such as employment,
training, housing, and contracts generated by the federally assisted activity, on the basis of race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, age, or disability.

The City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of
1968, as amended, and 24 CFR Part 135 is required, to the greatest extent feasible, to provide training
and employment opportunities to lower income residents and contract opportunities to businesses in
the federally assisted project area.

The City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 104(1) of the Housing and Community
Development Act, as amended, and State’s certification requirements at 24 CFR 91.325(b)(6), must
adopt an excessive force policy that prohibits the use of excessive force against non-violent civil rights
demonstrations.

The City of Texas City, in accordance with Executive Order 13166, must take reasonable steps to
ensure meaningful access to services in federally assisted programs and activities by persons with
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and must have an LEP plan in place specific to the locality and
beneficiaries for each federally assisted project.

The City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, does not
discriminate on the basis of disability and agrees to ensure that qualified individuals with disabilities
have access to programs and activities that receive federal funds.

The City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 808(e)(5) of the Fair Housing Act (42 USC
3608(e)(5)) that requires HUD programs and activities be administered in a manner affirmatively to
further the policies of the Fair Housing Act.

The City of Texas City, must designate an official to maintain written standards of conduct covering
conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award, and
administration of federally funded contracts.

RECOMMENDATION



It is the recommendation of the Director of Community Development & Grants
Administration that the Commission approve this resolution, adopting the following: 

1. Citizen Participation Plan-Amended;
2. Section 3 Policy for Federally Assisted Programs and Activities;
3. Excessive Force Policy;
4. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Standards Plan;
5. Section 504 Policy and Grievance Procedures for Federally Assisted Programs and
Activities; 
6. Code of Conduct Policy for Federally Assisted Programs and Activities; and
7. Fair Housing Policy.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 
Citizen Participation Plan-Amended 
Civil Rights Policies & Procedures 
Resolution Draft 
Updated policy 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-047 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING VARIOUS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
RELATED TO CIVIL RIGHTS AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT-MITIGATION (CDBG-MIT); AND PROVIDING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, Texas, (hereinafter referred to as “City of Texas 

City”) has been awarded a Community Development Block Grant – Mitigation (CDBG-MIT) 
from the Texas General Land Office (hereinafter referred to as “GLO”); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 109 of Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act. (24 CFR 6); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
(42 U.S.C. 6101-6107); and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 
for construction contracts greater than $10,000.00, must take actions to ensure that no person or 
group is denied benefits such as employment, training, housing, and contracts generated by the 
CDBG MIT activity, on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Texas City, in consideration for the receipt and acceptance of 
federal funding for the Contract, agrees to comply with all federal rules and regulations including 
those rules and regulations governing citizen participation and civil rights protections; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 3 of the Housing and 
Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, and 24 CFR Part 135 is required, to the greatest 
extent feasible, to provide training and employment opportunities to lower income residents and 
contract opportunities to businesses in the CDBG-MIT project area; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 104(1) of the Housing 
and Community Development Act, as amended, and State’s certification requirements at 24 CFR 
91.325(b)(6), must adopt an excessive force policy that prohibits the use of excessive force 
against non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Executive Order 13166, must 
take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to services in federally assisted programs and 
activities by persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and must have an LEP plan in 
place specific to the locality and beneficiaries for each CDBG-MIT project; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, does not discriminate on the basis of disability and agrees to ensure 
that qualified individuals with disabilities have access to programs and activities that receive 
federal funds; and  

WHEREAS,  the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 808(e)(5) of the Fair 
Housing Act (42 USC 3608(e)(5)) that requires HUD programs and activities be administered in 
a manner affirmatively to further the policies of the Fair Housing Act, agrees to conduct at least 
one activity during the contract period, to affirmatively further fair housing; and 



 2 
 

WHEREAS, City of Texas City, has designated an overseer and will maintain written 
standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees 
engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, ADOPTS 
THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Citizen Participation Plan and Grievance Procedures.  

2. Section 3 Policy.  

3. Excessive Force Policy.  

4. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Standards Plan.  

5. Section 504 Policy and Grievance Procedures.  

6. Code of Conduct Policy.  

 7. Fair Housing Policy. 

SECTION 2:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of March 2024. 

 
 
                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
City of Texas City, Texas 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                     _______________________________  
Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TX 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 

 

 
ADOPTED BY TEXAS CITY COMMISSION ON December 21, 2022 

AMENDED APRIL 2021, DECEMBER 2022, MARCH 2024 

 

  



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     2 | P a g e  
 

PURPOSE 
Participating Jurisdictions that receive U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) CDBG 

grant funds must develop a Citizen Participation Plan (CCP).  The CCP describes efforts that will be 

undertaken to encourage citizens to participate in the development of the City’s federal reports: Five-Year 

Consolidated Plan, annual Action Plan, and the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 

(CAPER). 

 

The Citizen Participation Plan is designed to encourage the participation of city residents in the development 

of the federal reports as listed above, particularly those residents who are predominantly low-and-moderate-

income.  The CPP also encourages local and regional institutions and other organizations including 

businesses, developers, and community and faith-based organizations to participate in the process of 

developing and implementing the Five-Year Consolidated Plan and related reports.  The City takes 

appropriate actions to encourage the participation of persons of minority backgrounds, persons with limited-

English proficiency, and persons with disabilities.  

 

The City of Texas City is committed to compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 

of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.  Reasonable modifications and equal access to 

communications will be provided upon request.  The City of Texas City does not discriminate on the basis of 

disability in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs and activities. 

 

The City of Texas City considers it the right of all Texas City residents to have the opportunity to provide input 

and comment on the use of public funds and the community’s needs related to affordable housing and 

economic development.  The citizen participation plan applies to five areas of the planning for the use of 

affordable housing, community and economic development made possible through HUD funding: 

1. The Five-Year Consolidated Plan 

2. The Annual Action Plan 

3. The Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 

4. Substantial Amendments to a Five-Year Consolidated Plan and/or annual Action Plan 

5. Amendments to the Citizen Participation Plan, itself. 

The City of Texas City’s program/fiscal year begins October 1 and ends September 30.  In order to receive 

Entitlement grant funding, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires 

jurisdictions to submit a Consolidated Plan every five years.  This plan is a comprehensive strategic plan for 

community planning and development activities.  The Annual Action Plan serves as the City’s application for 

the HUD grant program.  Federal law also requires citizens have opportunities to review and comment on 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     3 | P a g e  
 

the local jurisdiction’s plans to allocate these funds.  

 

The purpose of programs covered by the Citizen Participation Plan is to improve the Texas City’s community 

by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment, and growing economic opportunities – all 

principally for low-and moderate- income households.  

 

This document outlines how members of the Texas City community may participate in the five planning areas 

listed above. 

 

This CPP serves to meet the federal requirements described above concurrently, for the term of the FY 2020 

– FY 2024 Consolidated Plan cycle. 

HUD PROGRAMS 
 

The City of Texas City receives one of four entitlement grants from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, to help address the City’s affordable housing, community, and economic development needs.  

The four entitlement grants are: 

 

1. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

2. HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 

3. Emergency Shelter/Solutions Grant (ESG) 

4. Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) 

The City of Texas City receives only the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): Title l of the Housing 

and Community Development Act of 1974 (PL 93-383) created the CDBG program.  It was re-authorized in 

1990 as part of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act.   

Federal Objectives: The CDBG program was developed to give local jurisdictions the flexibility to develop their 

own funding priorities.  However, the authorizing statute of the CDBG program requires that each activity 

funded must meet one of three national objectives.  The three national CDBG objections and subcategories: 

1. Benefit to low-and moderate-income (LMI) persons.  The LMI objective is often referred to as the 

primary objective because the statute requires the 70 percent of the CDBG funds must be expended 

to meet the LMI objective, using one of the following subcategories: 

a) Area Benefit Activities:  Project benefits all residents in a particular area, where     at least 51 

percent are low-and moderate-income residents. 

b) Limited Clientele Activities: Project beneficiaries include at least 51 percent low-and moderate – 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     4 | P a g e  
 

income residents 

2. To aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight. 

3. To meet other urgent community development needs (urgent need as determined by HUD). 

The primary objective of the CDBG program is to develop viable urban communities by providing decent 

housing and a suitable living environment and by expanding economic development opportunities for 

persons of low and moderate income.  The City develops locally defined programs and funding priorities 

for CDBG.  The City of Texas City’s CDBG program emphasizes activities that directly benefit low- and 

moderate-income persons and the prevention or elimination of slums and blight.  

ROLE, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

The City of Texas City’s Community Development Department is designated by the Mayor and City 

Commissioners as lead agency for the administration of the CDBG grant program. As the lead agency for 

HUD, the Community Development Department is responsible for developing the Five-Year Consolidated 

Plan, annual Action Plan, and the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). The 

Community Development Department coordinates with the TCISD, TCHA, and other community agencies to 

develop these plans. 

 

Contact: 

 
Titilayo Smith, Director 
City of Texas City 
Community Development Department & Grants Administration 
928 5th Ave. North 
Texas City, TX  77590 
tsmith@texascitytx.gov 

409-643-5731 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES SUBJECT TO CPP 
 

ACTIVITY 1 – FIVE-YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN.  The City of Texas City’s Five-Year Consolidated Plan will be 

developed through a collaborative process whereby the community establishes a unified vision for Texas 

City’s affordable housing, and community and economic development initiatives.   

Citizen Participation is a major component of the planning and development process of the Five – Year 

Consolidated Plan, including amending the plan as well as reporting on program performance. Consultations, 

public hearings, community meetings, citizen surveys and opportunities to provide written comment are all 

mailto:tsmith@texascitytx.gov


The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     5 | P a g e  
 

a part of the strategy to obtain citizen input.  The City will make special to solicit the views of citizens who 

reside in the designated CDBG-priority neighborhoods of Texas City, and to encourage the participation of all 

citizens including minorities, the non-English speaking population, and persons with disabilities.  Actions for 

public participation in the Five-Year Consolidated Plan follow: 

1. Consultation with other Community Institutions.  In developing the Consolidated Plan, the City will 

consult with other public and private agencies, both for profit and non-profits that either provide or 

have direct impact on the broad range of housing, health, and social services needed by Texas City 

residents.  The City will specifically encourage, in consultation with the Texas City Housing Authority 

(TCHA), the participation of residents of public and assisted housing developments, in the process of 

developing and implementing the consolidated plan, along with other low-income residents of 

targeted revitalization areas in which the developments are located.  Consultations may take place 

through meetings, by telephone or others means with which to coordinate information and facilitate 

communication.  The purpose of this communication is to gather information and data on the 

community and economic development needs of the community.  The City will seek specific input to 

identify the needs of persons experiencing homelessness, persons living with HIV/AIDS and their 

families, persons with disabilities and other special populations. 

2. Utilize Quantitative Data on Community Needs.  City staff shall review relevant data and conduct 

necessary evaluation and analysis to provide an accurate assessment of community needs and 

priorities on which to base strategic recommendations. 

3. Public Hearings.  There will be a minimum of two public hearings at the beginning stages of the 

development of the Consolidated Plan to gather information on community needs from citizens and 

organizations working with the low- and moderate-income populations before making any 

recommendation to the Mayor and City Commissioners. 

The hearings will address housing and community development needs, development of proposed 

activities, and review of program performance.  At least one of the hearings will be held before the 

proposed consolidated plan is published for comment. 

The hearings will be held at times and locations convenient to potential and actual beneficiaries, and 

with accommodation for persons with disabilities.  The hearings will also will accommodate non-

English speaking residents with a translator when a significant number of non-English speaking 

residents will be reasonably expected to participate.  

Citizens will receive notice of the hearings at least two weeks in advance via local newspapers, the 

City website, the City’s social media accounts, and flyers in public areas including, but not limited to, 

City Hall and the main library. 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     6 | P a g e  
 

The Cares Act permits the City to hold virtual public hearings when necessary for public health 

reasons. 

4. Written Comments.  Based on public input and quantitative analysis, staff will prepare a draft Five-

Year Consolidated Plan, which also includes proposed allocation of first-year funding.  A period of 30 

calendar days will be provided to receive written comments on the draft Five-Year Consolidated Plan.  

The draft will be made available at the public library, the public housing authority and neighborhood 

centers, at the office of community development, on the city’s web site and the county newspaper. 

5. Final Action on the Consolidated Plan.  All written and oral comments provided will be considered in 

preparing the final Five-Year Consolidated Plan.  A summary of comments received and the City’s 

reasons for accepting or not accepting will be included in the final document.  The Mayor, City 

Commission and Director of Community Development will consider the comments and the community 

developments recommendations.   

 

Before the City adopts the consolidated plan, it will make available to the citizens, public agencies, 

and other interested parties information that includes the amount of assistance the City expects to 

receive and the range of activities that may be undertaken, including the estimated amount that will 

benefit persons of low- and moderate income. 

 

When approved by the Mayor and City Commissioner’s the Five-Year Consolidated Plan will be 

submitted to HUD, no later than August 15th of the year due. 

ACTIVITY 2 – ONE-YEAR ACTION PLAN.  Each year the City must submit an annual Action Plan to HUD, 

reporting on how that year’s funding allocation for CDBG entitlement grant will be to achieve the goals 

outlined in the Five-Year Consolidated Plan. 

1. Community Development staff will gather input from citizens and consultations to prepare the draft 

Action Plan.  There shall be two public hearings to receive citizen input on the community needs, 

including funding allocations. 

2. Community Development staff will gather public input and statistical data to prepare the draft Action 

Plan.  The draft Action Plan will be available for 30 days for public comment after reasonable notice 

(at least 2 weeks) to the public is given. 

3. The community development staff will be given the opportunity to make recommendations to the 

Mayor, City Commission and the Director of Community Development. 

4. When approved by the Mayor and City Commission, the Action Plan will be submitted to HUD 

ACTIVITY 3 –   SUBSTANIAL AMENDMENTS TO CONSOLIDATED/ACTION PLAN.  Recognizing that changes 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     7 | P a g e  
 

during the year may be necessary to the Five-Year Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plan after approval, 

the Citizen Participation Plan allows for “substantial amendments” to plans.  These “substantial 

amendments” apply only to changes in CDBG funding allocations and the Citizen Participation Plan defines 

a substantial amendment as: 

1. When program income is received as a result of a CDBG funded activity or project; or 

2. When there is a substantial change in the purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries of a project or 

activity involving $50,000 or more of CDBG funds that are to be transferred to an existing CDBG 

activity or to a newly created activity. 

The amendment will be made available at the public library, at the office of community development, on the 

city’s web site and the county newspaper. 

Per HUD regulations at CFR 91.505, a thirty (30)-day public comment period is required prior to obligations 

of funds, including local newspaper publication requesting citizen input. 

The City will receive written comments on the Cares Act COVID-19 amendment for a period of 5 calendar 

days. 

After the public comment period expires, the City shall consider any comments or views of citizens received 

in writing or orally at public hearings, if any, in preparing the substantial amendment.  A summary of these 

comments or views, and a summary of any comments and views not accepted and the reasons shall be 

attached to the substantial amendment of the consolidated plan.  The budget amendment request must be 

approved and signed by the Mayor. It will then be submitted to HUD for their approval. 

 

ACTIVITY 4 – CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER).  The City is 

required to submit annually by December 30 a CAPER to HUD that describes the City’s progress in meeting 

the goals in the Five-year Consolidated Plan. 

1. Community Development staff will prepare the draft CAPER. 

2. The CAPER will be available for 15 days for written public comment. 

3. The City shall consider any comments or views of citizens received in writing or orally at public 

hearings, if any, in preparing the CAPER.  A summary of these comments or view, and a summary of 

any comments and views not accepted and the reasons shall be attached to the CAPER. 

4. The final CAPER and public comments will then be submitted to HUD. 

5. The CAPER and public comments will be available for citizens’ to review. 

6.  

ACTIVITY 5 – AMENDMENTS TO CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN.  In the event that changes to this Citizen 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     8 | P a g e  
 

Participation Plan are necessary, the community development staff shall draft them. 

1. Community Development staff prepares the draft changes. 

2. The amended Citizen Participation Plan is available for 15 days for written public comment on the 

proposed changes. 

3. The Community Development staff will be given the opportunity to make recommendations before 

the final amended Citizen Participation Plan and public comments are finalized.  

4. Upon approval by the Mayor and City Commission, the Substantial Amendment will be posted in the 

official Commission meeting minutes and be available online and in the City Secretary’s Office. 

 

The City will review the Citizen Participation Plan at a minimum of every 5 years for potential 

enhancements or modification; this review will occur as a component of the Consolidated Planning 

process. 

DISPLACEMENT POLICY  
 

As part of this CPP, the City must maintain a displacement policy. The City will continue to use existing 

federal and State of Texas relocation guidelines, as applicable, to minimize displacement and to alleviate 

the problems caused by displacement. Both the federal government and the State of Texas have specific 

requirements dictating the amount of benefits and assistance that must be provided to low-income 

persons and households relocated from their homes as a result of displacement. Depending on the 

funding source, displaced persons may be offered one or more of the following:  

• A rent subsidy for another unit  

• A cash payment to be used for rent or a down payment on the purchase of a dwelling unit  

• Moving and related expenses 

AVAILABILITY TO THE PUBLIC 
 

The City of Texas City will make available to the public the consolidated plan as adopted, substantial 
amendments, and CAPERs via the City’s website, at the city’s libraries, and at the Texas City Housing 
Authority.  These documents will also be made accessible to persons with disabilities, upon request. 

The City will also provide citizens, public agencies, and other interested parties with reasonable and 
timely access to information and records relating to the City’s consolidated plan and its use of 
assistance under the CDBG during the preceding five years. 

 

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     9 | P a g e  
 

The Community Development Department will provide for technical assistance to groups representative 
of persons of low- and moderate-income that request such assistance in developing proposal for funding 
assistance under any of the programs covered by the consolidated plan. 

COMPLAINTS 
 

The Community Development Department will provide a written response to every written citizen 
complaint, within 15 working days, where practicable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     10 | P a g e  
 

AMENDMENT 
TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE (GLO)  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-MITIGATION  (CDBG-MIT) PROGRAM 
APRIL 2024 

 

CDBG-MIT PUBLIC OUTREACH EFFORTS 
 
The City shall provide reasonable public notice, appraisal, examination, and comment on the activities 
proposed for the use of CDBG-MIT MOD funds. These efforts shall include: 

 
1. Provide for and encourage citizen participation, particularly by low- and moderate-income persons 

who reside in areas in which CDBG-MIT MOD funds are proposed to be used; 

2. Ensure that citizens will be given reasonable and timely access to local meetings, information, and 
records relating to an entity’s proposed and actual use of CDBG-MIT MOD funds; 

3. Furnish citizens information, including but not limited to: 
a. the amount of CDBG-MIT MOD funds expected to be made available  
b. the range of activities that may be undertaken with the CDBG-MIT MOD funds  
c. the estimated amount of the CDBG-MIT MOD funds proposed to be used for activities that will meet the 

national objective of benefit to low- and moderate-income persons 
d. if applicable, the proposed CDBG-MIT MOD activities likely to result in displacement and the entity’s anti- 

displacement and relocation plan 

4. Provide citizens with reasonable advance notice of, and opportunity to comment on, proposed 
activities in an application to the state and, for grants already made, activities which are proposed 
to be added, deleted or substantially changed from the entity's application to the state. Substantially 
changed means changes made in terms of purpose, scope, location or beneficiaries as defined by 
criteria established by the state; and 

5. These outreach efforts may be accomplished through one or more of the following methods: 
a. Publication of notice in a local newspaper—a published newspaper article may be used so long as it 

provides sufficient information regarding program activities and relevant dates; 
b. Notices prominently posted in public buildings and distributed to local Public Housing Authorities and 

other interested community groups; 
c. Posting of notice on the local entity website (if available); 
d. Individual notice to eligible cities and other entities as applicable using one or more of the following 

methods: 
• Certified mail 
• Electronic mail or fax 
• First-class (regular) mail 
• Personal delivery (e.g., at a Council of Governments [COG] meeting) 

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
These complaint procedures comply with the requirements of the Texas General Land Office’s Community 
Development Block Grant – MITIGATION PROGRAM (CDBG-MIT) Program and Local Government 
Requirements found in 24 CFR §570.486 (Code of Federal Regulations). Citizens can obtain a copy of these 
procedures at Texas City City Hall Annex, 928 5th Ave N, 77590 or PO Drawer 2608, Texas City, Texas 
77592-2608, (Street Address), (409) 643-5731 (Phone) during regular business hours. 

 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     11 | P a g e  
 

Below are the formal complaint and grievance procedures regarding the services provided under the 
CDBG-MIT project. 

1. A person who has a complaint or grievance about any services or activities with respect to the 
CDBG-MIT project(s), whether it is a proposed, ongoing, or completed CDBG-MIT project(s), may 
during regular business hours submit such complaint or grievance, in writing to the Director of 
Community Development & Grants Administration at 928 5th Ave N, 77590 or PO Drawer 2608, 
Texas City, Texas 77592-2608 or may call (409) 643-5731. 

2. A copy of the complaint or grievance shall be transmitted to the Mayor, the entity that is the 
subject of the complaint or grievance, and to the City Attorney within five (5) working days after 
the date of the complaint or grievance was received. 

3. The Director of Community Development & Grants Administration shall complete an investigation 
of the complaint or grievance, if practicable, and provide a timely written answer to person who 
made the complaint or grievance within ten (10) days.  

4. If the investigation cannot be completed within ten (10) working days per 3. above, the person 
who made the grievance or complaint shall be notified, in writing, within fifteen (15) days where 
practicable after receipt of the original complaint or grievance and shall detail when the 
investigation should be completed. 

5. If necessary, the grievance and a written copy of the subsequent investigation shall be forwarded 
to the CDBG-MIT for their further review and comment. 

6. If appropriate, provide copies of grievance procedures and responses to grievances in both 
English and Spanish, or other appropriate language.  

PUBLIC HEARING PROVISIONS (AS APPLICABLE) 
 
For each public hearing scheduled and conducted by a CDBG-MIT applicant or recipient, the following public 
hearing provisions shall be observed: 
 

1. Furnish citizens information, including but not limited to: 
(a) The amount of CDBG-MIT funds available per application for MITIGATION PROGRAM 
(b) The range of activities that may be undertaken with the CDBG-MIT MITIGATION PROGRAM funds; 
(c) The estimated amount of the CDBG-MIT MITIGATION PROGRAM funds proposed to be used for 

activities that will meet the national objective of benefit to low- and moderate-income persons; 
and 

(d) The proposed CDBG-MIT activities are likely to result in displacement and the unit of general local 
government's anti-displacement and relocation plans required under 24 CFR 570.488. 

 
2. Public notice of any hearings must be published at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled 

hearing. The public notice must be published in a local newspaper. Each public notice MUST include 
the DATE, TIME, LOCATION and TOPICS to be considered at the public hearing. A published newspaper 
article may also be used to meet this requirement so long as it meets all content and timing 
requirements. Notices should also be prominently posted in public buildings and distributed to local 
Public Housing Authorities and other interested community groups. 

 
3. Each public hearing shall be held at a time and location convenient to potential or actual beneficiaries 

and will include accommodation for persons with disabilities. Persons with disabilities must be able to 
attend the hearings and an applicant must make arrangements for individuals who require auxiliary aids 
or services if contacted at least two days prior to each hearing. 

 



The City of Texas City Citizen Participation Plan 2024     12 | P a g e  
 

4. When a significant number of non-English speaking residents can be reasonably expected to participate 
in a public hearing, an interpreter will be present to accommodate the needs of the non-English speaking 
residents. 

 
5. City may conduct a public hearing via webinar if they also follow the provisions above. If the webinar is 

used to conduct a public hearing, a physical location with associated reasonable accommodations must 
be made available for citizens to participate so as to ensure that those individuals without necessary 
technology are able to participate. 

 
6. If applicable, the locality must retain documentation of the hearing notice(s), attendance lists, minutes 

of the hearing(s), and any other records concerning the actual use of funds for a period of three years 
after the project is closed out. Such records must be made available to the public in accordance with 
Chapter 552, Government Code. 

 
 
 
_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
Signature       Name, Title    
 
 
_____________________________ 
Date 



 
Section 3 Policy For 

Federally Assisted Programs And Activities 
 

In accordance with 12 U.S.C. 1701u, (Section 3), City of Texas City agrees to implement the following steps, which, 
to the greatest extent feasible, will provide job training, employment and contracting opportunities for Section 3 
residents and Section 3 businesses of the areas in which the program/project is being carried out.  

A. Introduce and pass a resolution adopting this plan as a policy to strive to attain goals for compliance to 
Section 3 regulations by increasing opportunities for employment and contracting for Section 3 residents and 
businesses.  

B. Assign duties related to implementation of this plan to the designated Section 3 Coordinator. 

C. Notify Section 3 residents and business concerns of potential new employment and contracting 
opportunities as they are triggered by federal grant awards through the use of: Public Hearings and related 
advertisements; public notices; bidding advertisements and bid documents; notification to local business 
organizations such as the Chamber(s) of Commerce or the Urban League; local advertising media including public 
signage; project area committees and citizen advisory boards; local HUD offices; regional planning agencies; and 
all other appropriate referral sources. Include Section 3 clauses in all covered solicitations and contracts. 

D. Maintain a list of those businesses that have identified themselves as Section 3 businesses for utilization in 
federally funded procurements, notify those businesses of pending contractual opportunities, and make this list 
available for general Grant Recipient procurement needs. 

E. Maintain a list of those persons who have identified themselves as Section 3 residents and contact those 
persons when hiring/training opportunities are available through either the Grant Recipient or contractors. 

F. Require that all Prime contractors and subcontractors with contracts over $100,000 commit to this plan as 
part of their contract work. Monitor the contractors’ performance with respect to meeting Section 3 requirements 
and require that they submit reports as may be required by the applicable federal entity, or its grantee (if City is 
sub-grantee) to the Grant Recipient.    

G. Submit reports as required by the applicable federal entity regarding contracting with Section 3 businesses 
and/or employment as they occur; and submit reports within 20 days of federal fiscal year end (by October 20) 
which identify and quantify Section 3 businesses and employees. 

H. Maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which document all actions 
taken to comply with Section 3 regulations. 

As officers and representatives of the City of Texas City, we the undersigned have read and fully agree to this plan 
and become a party to the full implementation of this program.  

 

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title 

     

_____________________________ 

Date 



 
Excessive Force Policies For 

Federally Assisted Programs and Activities 
 

In accordance with 24 CFR 91.325(b)(6), the City of Texas City hereby adopts and will enforce the following policies 
with respect to the use of force:   

1. It is the policy of the City of Texas City to prohibit the use of excessive force by the law enforcement 
agencies within its jurisdiction against any individual engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations. 

2. It is also the policy of City of Texas City to enforce applicable State and local laws against physically barring 
entrance to or exit from a facility or location that is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations 
within its jurisdiction. 

3.  This policy in no way overrides the Texas City Police Department Use of Force policy but clarifies the 
General Rules. 

4. The City of Texas City will introduce and pass a resolution adopting this policy. 

As officers and representatives of the City of Texas City, we the undersigned have read and fully agree to this plan 
and become a party to the full implementation of this program.  

 

 

 

                                                                           

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title     

 

 

_____________________________ 

Date 

  



 
Limited English Proficiency Plan - 24-065-018-E175 
Texas General Land Office 

Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery  

 
Grant Subrecipient: City of Texas City 

Community Population: 58,435 

LEP Population: 3,496 

7.27% 

Languages spoken: 

1) by more than 5% of the eligible population or beneficiaries 
and has more than 50 in number; or  
2) By more than 1,000 individuals in the eligible population in 
the market area or among current beneficiaries 

 
Spanish   

 
Program activities to be accessible to LEP persons: 

   Public Notices and hearings regarding applications for grant funding, amendments to project activities, and completion 
of grant-funded project 

   Publications regarding CDBG-MIT application, grievance procedures, complaint procedures, complaint procedures, 
answers to complaints, notices, notices of rights and disciplinary action, and other vital hearings, documents, and 
program requirements 

   Other program documents: 
Documents available in Spanish for directly assisted beneficiaries, if applicable.  

 
Resources available to Grant Recipient: 

   Translation services: available upon request  
   Interpreter services: available upon request with prior notice 

   Other resources: ____________________________________________________ 

 
Language Assistance to be provided: 

 Translation (oral and/or written) of advertised notices and vital documents for: 
Public hearing, Complaint and Grievance, Equal Opportunity, Policy of Non-discrimination Based on Disability Status 
and Fair Housing notices are available in Spanish. Other CDBG required program notices are available in Spanish upon 
request.  

 Referrals to community liaisons proficient in the language of LEP persons 

Spanish-speaking liaisons are available upon request.  
 Public meetings conducted in multiple languages: 

Available upon request with two days advance notice.  
 Notices to recipients of the availability of LEP services: 

Included in translated notices.  
□  Other services:  
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
__________________________________________________ __________________________ 
Signature - Chief Elected Official or Civil Rights Officer   Date  
 
See also: http://www.lep.gov/resources/2011_Language_Access_Assessment_and_Planning_Tool.pdf 
  

http://www.lep.gov/resources/2011_Language_Access_Assessment_and_Planning_Tool.pdf


 
 

Section 504 Policy against Discrimination based on Handicap and Grievance Procedures for 
Federally Assisted Programs and Activities 

 
In accordance with 24 CFR Section 8, Nondiscrimination based on Handicap in federally assisted programs and 
activities of the Department of Housing and Urban Development, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. 5309), City of Texas City hereby adopts the following policy and grievance procedures:  
 

1. Discrimination prohibited.   No otherwise qualified individual with handicaps in the United States shall, 
solely by reason of his or her handicap, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance 
from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

 
2. City of Texas City does not discriminate on the basis of handicap in admission or access to, or treatment 

or employment in, its federally assisted programs and activities.   
 

3. City of Texas City’s recruitment materials or publications shall include a statement of this policy in 1. 
above. 
 

4. City of Texas City shall take continuing steps to notify participants, beneficiaries, applicants, and 
employees, including those with impaired vision or hearing, and unions or professional organizations 
holding collective bargaining or professional agreements with the recipients that it does not discriminate 
on the basis of handicap in violation of 24 CFR Part 8.  
 

5. For hearing and visually impaired individuals eligible to be served or likely to be affected by the CDBG-
MIT program (or any other federally funded program), the City of Texas City shall ensure that they are 
provided with the information necessary to understand and participate in the program. 
 

6. Grievances and Complaints 
 
a. Any person who believes she or he has been subjected to discrimination on the basis of disability 

may file a grievance under this procedure. It is against the law for City of Texas City to retaliate 
against anyone who files a grievance or cooperates in the investigation of a grievance. 

 
b. Complaints should be addressed to the Mayor, PO Drawer 2608, Texas City, TX, 77592-2608 or call 

(409) 643-5731, who has been designated to coordinate Section 504 compliance efforts. 
 
c. A complaint should be filed in writing or verbally, contain the name and address of the person filing 

it, and briefly describe the alleged violation of the regulations.  
 
d. A complaint should be filed within thirty (30) working days after the complainant becomes aware of 

the alleged violation.  
 
e. An investigation, as may be appropriate, shall follow the filing of a complaint. The investigation will 

be conducted by the Mayor and/or his/her delegate. Informal but thorough investigations will afford 
all involved persons and their representatives, if any, an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to a 
complaint.  

 
f. A written determination as to the validity of the complaint and description of resolution, if any, shall 

be issued by Mayor and/or his/her delegate, and a copy forwarded to the complainant within fifteen 
(15) working days after the filing of the complaint where practicable. 

 
g. The Section 504 coordinator shall maintain the files and records of the City of Texas City relating to 

the complaint files. 



 
 
h. The complainant can request a reconsideration of the case in instances where he or she is dissatisfied 

with the determination/resolution as described in f. above. The request for reconsideration should be 
made to City of Texas City within ten working days after the receipt of the written 
determination/resolution.   

 
i. The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint filed hereunder shall not 

be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a Section 504 complaint 
with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. Utilization of this grievance procedure 
is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 

 
j. These procedures shall be construed to protect the substantive rights of interested persons, to meet 

appropriate due process standards and assure that City of Texas City complies with Section 504 and 
HUD regulations. 

 
 
 
_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
Signature      Name, Title     
 
 
_____________________________ 

Date 
  



 
 Code of Conduct Policy of City of Texas City for  

Federally Assisted Programs and Activities 
 

As a Grant Recipient of a federally assisted contract, the City of Texas City shall avoid, neutralize, or mitigate actual 
or potential conflicts of interest to prevent an unfair competitive advantage or the existence of conflicting roles that 
might impair the performance of the contract or impact the integrity of the procurement process.  

For procurement of goods and services, no employee, officer, or agent of City of Texas City shall participate in the 
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he or she has a real or apparent 
conflict of interest.  Such a conflict could arise if the employee, officer, or agent; any member of his/her immediate 
family; his/her partner; or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, 
has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract.    

No officer, employee, or agent of City of Texas City shall solicit or accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary 
value from contractors or firms, potential contractors or firms, or parties to sub-agreements, except where the 
financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. 

Contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or 
requests for proposals must be excluded from competing for such procurements.  

For all other cases, no employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the state, or of a unit 
of general local government, or of any designated public agencies, or subrecipients which are receiving federal 
funds, that has any function/responsibility, or is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain 
inside information, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the federally funded activity.  

The conflict-of-interest restrictions and procurement requirements identified herein shall apply to a benefitting 
business, utility provider, or other third-party entity that is receiving assistance, directly or indirectly, under a 
federally funded contract or award, or that is required to complete some or all work under the federally funded 
contract in order to meet the National Program Objective. 

Any person or entity including any benefitting business, utility provider, or other third party entity that is receiving 
assistance, directly or indirectly, under a federally funded contract or award, or that is required to complete some 
or all work under the contract in order to meet a National Program Objective, that might potentially receive benefits 
from said awards may not participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal 
funding. 

Any alleged violations of these standards of conduct shall be referred to the City of Texas City Attorney.  Where 
violations appear to have occurred, the offending employee, officer or agent shall be subject to disciplinary action, 
including but not limited to dismissal or transfer; where violations or infractions appear to be substantial in nature, 
the matter may be referred to the appropriate officials for criminal investigation and possible prosecution. 

 

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title     

_____________________________ 

Date 

These procedures are intended to serve as guidelines for the procurement of supplies, equipment, construction services and professional services for 
federally funded programs and activities.  The regulations related to conflict of interest and nepotism may be found at the Texas Government Code Chapter 
573, Texas Local Government Code Chapter 171, Uniform Grant Management Standards by Texas Comptroller, 24 CFR 570.489(g) &(h), and 2 CFR 200.318 



 
Fair Housing Policy 

 

In accordance with Fair Housing Act, the City of Texas City hereby adopts the following policy with respect to the 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing: 

 

1. The City of Texas City agrees to affirmatively further fair housing choice for all seven protected classes by: 
 

a. Analyzing and eliminating housing discrimination in the jurisdiction, 
b. Promoting fair housing choice for all persons. 
c. Providing opportunities for inclusive patterns of housing occupancy regardless of race, color, religion, 

sex, familial status, disability, and national origin. 
d. Promoting housing that is structurally accessible to, and usable by, all persons, particularly persons 

with disabilities. 
e. Fostering compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of the Fair Housing Act. 

2. The City of Texas City agrees to plan at least one activity during any federally assisted contract term to 
affirmatively further fair housing.  

 3.  The City of Texas City will introduce and pass a resolution adopting this policy. 

As officers and representatives of City of Texas City, we the undersigned have read and fully agree to this plan and 
become a party to the full implementation of this program.  

 

 

 

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title     

 

_____________________________ 

Date 

  

________________________________  Titilayo Smith, Fair Housing Administrator 

Signature     Name, Title 

 

________________________________ 

Date 



Resolution Regarding Civil Rights Policies & Procedures  
in Relation to Federally Assisted Programs and Activities  

 
Whereas, City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community 
Development Act. (24 CFR 6); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101-6107); and Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and for construction contracts greater than 
$10,000, must take actions to ensure that no person or group is denied benefits such as employment, 
training, housing, and contracts generated by the federally assisted activity, on the basis of race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, age, or disability; 
 
Whereas, the City of Texas City, in consideration for the receipt and acceptance of federal assistance, 
agrees to comply with all federal rules and regulations including those rules and regulations governing 
citizen participation and civil rights protections; 
 
Whereas, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 
Act of 1968, as amended, and 24 CFR Part 135 is required, to the greatest extent feasible, to provide 
training and employment opportunities to lower income residents and contract opportunities to 
businesses in federally assisted project areas; 
 
Whereas, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 104(1) of the Housing and Community 
Development Act, as amended, and State’s certification requirements at 24 CFR 91.325(b)(6), must 
adopt an excessive force policy that prohibits the use of excessive force against non-violent civil rights 
demonstrations;  
 
Whereas, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Executive Order 13166, must take reasonable 
steps to ensure meaningful access to services in federally assisted programs and activities by persons 
with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and must have an LEP plan in place specific to the locality and 
beneficiaries for each federally assisted project;  
 
Whereas, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
does not discriminate on the basis of disability and agrees to ensure that qualified individuals with 
disabilities have access to programs and activities that receive federal funds; and 

 

Whereas, the City of Texas City, in accordance with Section 808(e)(5) of the Fair Housing Act (42 
USC 3608(e)(5)) that requires HUD programs and activities be administered in a manner affirmatively 
to further the policies of the Fair Housing Act, agrees to conduct at least one activity during the contract 
period, to affirmatively further fair housing; 
 
Whereas, the City of Texas City, has designated an official that will maintain written standards of 
conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the 
selection, award and administration of contracts. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE City Commission OF City of Texas City, TEXAS, 
THAT the City of Texas City ADOPTS THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1. Citizen Participation Plan and Grievance Procedures Amendment; 
2. Section 3 Policy for Federally Assisted Programs And Activities; 
3. Excessive Force Policy; 
4. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Standards Plan; 
5. Section 504 Policy and Grievance Procedures for Federally Assisted Programs And Activities;  
6. Code of Conduct Policy for Federally Assisted Programs And Activities; and 
7. Fair Housing Policy. 

 



 
Section 3 Policy For 

Federally Assisted Programs And Activities 
 

In accordance with 12 U.S.C. 1701u, (Section 3), City of Texas City agrees to implement the following steps, which, 
to the greatest extent feasible, will provide job training, employment and contracting opportunities for Section 3 
residents and Section 3 businesses of the areas in which the program/project is being carried out.  

A. Introduce and pass a resolution adopting this plan as a policy to strive to attain goals for compliance to 
Section 3 regulations by increasing opportunities for employment and contracting for Section 3 residents and 
businesses.  

B. Assign duties related to implementation of this plan to the designated Section 3 Coordinator. 

C. Notify Section 3 residents and business concerns of potential new employment and contracting 
opportunities as they are triggered by federal grant awards through the use of: Public Hearings and related 
advertisements; public notices; bidding advertisements and bid documents; notification to local business 
organizations such as the Chamber(s) of Commerce or the Urban League; local advertising media including public 
signage; project area committees and citizen advisory boards; local HUD offices; regional planning agencies; and 
all other appropriate referral sources. Include Section 3 clauses in all covered solicitations and contracts. 

D. Maintain a list of those businesses that have identified themselves as Section 3 businesses for utilization in 
federally funded procurements, notify those businesses of pending contractual opportunities, and make this list 
available for general Grant Recipient procurement needs. 

E. Maintain a list of those persons who have identified themselves as Section 3 residents and contact those 
persons when hiring/training opportunities are available through either the Grant Recipient or contractors. 

F. Require that all Prime contractors and subcontractors with contracts over $100,000 commit to this plan as 
part of their contract work. Monitor the contractors’ performance with respect to meeting Section 3 requirements 
and require that they submit reports as may be required by the applicable federal entity, or its grantee (if City is 
sub-grantee) to the Grant Recipient.    

G. Submit reports as required by the applicable federal entity regarding contracting with Section 3 businesses 
and/or employment as they occur; and submit reports within 20 days of federal fiscal year end (by October 20) 
which identify and quantify Section 3 businesses and employees. 

H. Maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which document all actions 
taken to comply with Section 3 regulations. 

As officers and representatives of the City of Texas City, we the undersigned have read and fully agree to this plan 
and become a party to the full implementation of this program.  

 

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title 

     

_____________________________ 

Date 



 
Excessive Force Policies For 

Federally Assisted Programs and Activities 
 

In accordance with 24 CFR 91.325(b)(6), the City of Texas City hereby adopts and will enforce the following policies 
with respect to the use of force:   

1. It is the policy of the City of Texas City to prohibit the use of excessive force by the law enforcement 
agencies within its jurisdiction against any individual engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations. 

2. It is also the policy of City of Texas City to enforce applicable State and local laws against physically barring 
entrance to or exit from a facility or location that is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations 
within its jurisdiction. 

3.  This policy in no way overrides the Texas City Police Department Use of Force policy but clarifies the 
General Rules. 

4. The City of Texas City will introduce and pass a resolution adopting this policy. 

As officers and representatives of the City of Texas City, we the undersigned have read and fully agree to this plan 
and become a party to the full implementation of this program.  

 

 

 

                                                                           

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title     

 

 

_____________________________ 

Date 

  



 
Limited English Proficiency Plan - 24-065-018-E175 
Texas General Land Office 

Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery  

 
Grant Subrecipient: City of Texas City 

Community Population: 58,435 

LEP Population: 3,496 

7.27% 

Languages spoken: 

1) by more than 5% of the eligible population or beneficiaries 
and has more than 50 in number; or  
2) By more than 1,000 individuals in the eligible population in 
the market area or among current beneficiaries 

 
Spanish   

 
Program activities to be accessible to LEP persons: 

   Public Notices and hearings regarding applications for grant funding, amendments to project activities, and completion 
of grant-funded project 

   Publications regarding CDBG-MIT application, grievance procedures, complaint procedures, complaint procedures, 
answers to complaints, notices, notices of rights and disciplinary action, and other vital hearings, documents, and 
program requirements 

   Other program documents: 
Documents available in Spanish for directly assisted beneficiaries, if applicable.  

 
Resources available to Grant Recipient: 

   Translation services: available upon request  
   Interpreter services: available upon request with prior notice 

   Other resources: ____________________________________________________ 

 
Language Assistance to be provided: 

 Translation (oral and/or written) of advertised notices and vital documents for: 
Public hearing, Complaint and Grievance, Equal Opportunity, Policy of Non-discrimination Based on Disability Status 
and Fair Housing notices are available in Spanish. Other CDBG required program notices are available in Spanish upon 
request.  

 Referrals to community liaisons proficient in the language of LEP persons 

Spanish-speaking liaisons are available upon request.  
 Public meetings conducted in multiple languages: 

Available upon request with two days advance notice.  
 Notices to recipients of the availability of LEP services: 

Included in translated notices.  
□  Other services:  
___________________________________________________________________ 

 
__________________________________________________ __________________________ 
Signature - Chief Elected Official or Civil Rights Officer   Date  
 
See also: http://www.lep.gov/resources/2011_Language_Access_Assessment_and_Planning_Tool.pdf 
  

http://www.lep.gov/resources/2011_Language_Access_Assessment_and_Planning_Tool.pdf


 
 

Section 504 Policy against Discrimination based on Handicap and Grievance Procedures for 
Federally Assisted Programs and Activities 

 
In accordance with 24 CFR Section 8, Nondiscrimination based on Handicap in federally assisted programs and 
activities of the Department of Housing and Urban Development, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. 5309), City of Texas City hereby adopts the following policy and grievance procedures:  
 

1. Discrimination prohibited.   No otherwise qualified individual with handicaps in the United States shall, 
solely by reason of his or her handicap, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance 
from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

 
2. City of Texas City does not discriminate on the basis of handicap in admission or access to, or treatment 

or employment in, its federally assisted programs and activities.   
 

3. City of Texas City’s recruitment materials or publications shall include a statement of this policy in 1. 
above. 
 

4. City of Texas City shall take continuing steps to notify participants, beneficiaries, applicants, and 
employees, including those with impaired vision or hearing, and unions or professional organizations 
holding collective bargaining or professional agreements with the recipients that it does not discriminate 
on the basis of handicap in violation of 24 CFR Part 8.  
 

5. For hearing and visually impaired individuals eligible to be served or likely to be affected by the CDBG-
MIT program (or any other federally funded program), the City of Texas City shall ensure that they are 
provided with the information necessary to understand and participate in the program. 
 

6. Grievances and Complaints 
 
a. Any person who believes she or he has been subjected to discrimination on the basis of disability 

may file a grievance under this procedure. It is against the law for City of Texas City to retaliate 
against anyone who files a grievance or cooperates in the investigation of a grievance. 

 
b. Complaints should be addressed to the Mayor, PO Drawer 2608, Texas City, TX, 77592-2608 or call 

(409) 643-5731, who has been designated to coordinate Section 504 compliance efforts. 
 
c. A complaint should be filed in writing or verbally, contain the name and address of the person filing 

it, and briefly describe the alleged violation of the regulations.  
 
d. A complaint should be filed within thirty (30) working days after the complainant becomes aware of 

the alleged violation.  
 
e. An investigation, as may be appropriate, shall follow the filing of a complaint. The investigation will 

be conducted by the Mayor and/or his/her delegate. Informal but thorough investigations will afford 
all involved persons and their representatives, if any, an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to a 
complaint.  

 
f. A written determination as to the validity of the complaint and description of resolution, if any, shall 

be issued by Mayor and/or his/her delegate, and a copy forwarded to the complainant within fifteen 
(15) working days after the filing of the complaint where practicable. 

 
g. The Section 504 coordinator shall maintain the files and records of the City of Texas City relating to 

the complaint files. 



 
 
h. The complainant can request a reconsideration of the case in instances where he or she is dissatisfied 

with the determination/resolution as described in f. above. The request for reconsideration should be 
made to City of Texas City within ten working days after the receipt of the written 
determination/resolution.   

 
i. The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint filed hereunder shall not 

be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a Section 504 complaint 
with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. Utilization of this grievance procedure 
is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 

 
j. These procedures shall be construed to protect the substantive rights of interested persons, to meet 

appropriate due process standards and assure that City of Texas City complies with Section 504 and 
HUD regulations. 

 
 
 
_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 
Signature      Name, Title     
 
 
_____________________________ 

Date 
  



 
 Code of Conduct Policy of City of Texas City for  

Federally Assisted Programs and Activities 
 

As a Grant Recipient of a federally assisted contract, the City of Texas City shall avoid, neutralize, or mitigate actual 
or potential conflicts of interest to prevent an unfair competitive advantage or the existence of conflicting roles that 
might impair the performance of the contract or impact the integrity of the procurement process.  

For procurement of goods and services, no employee, officer, or agent of City of Texas City shall participate in the 
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he or she has a real or apparent 
conflict of interest.  Such a conflict could arise if the employee, officer, or agent; any member of his/her immediate 
family; his/her partner; or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, 
has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract.    

No officer, employee, or agent of City of Texas City shall solicit or accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary 
value from contractors or firms, potential contractors or firms, or parties to sub-agreements, except where the 
financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. 

Contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or 
requests for proposals must be excluded from competing for such procurements.  

For all other cases, no employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the state, or of a unit 
of general local government, or of any designated public agencies, or subrecipients which are receiving federal 
funds, that has any function/responsibility, or is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain 
inside information, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the federally funded activity.  

The conflict-of-interest restrictions and procurement requirements identified herein shall apply to a benefitting 
business, utility provider, or other third-party entity that is receiving assistance, directly or indirectly, under a 
federally funded contract or award, or that is required to complete some or all work under the federally funded 
contract in order to meet the National Program Objective. 

Any person or entity including any benefitting business, utility provider, or other third party entity that is receiving 
assistance, directly or indirectly, under a federally funded contract or award, or that is required to complete some 
or all work under the contract in order to meet a National Program Objective, that might potentially receive benefits 
from said awards may not participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal 
funding. 

Any alleged violations of these standards of conduct shall be referred to the City of Texas City Attorney.  Where 
violations appear to have occurred, the offending employee, officer or agent shall be subject to disciplinary action, 
including but not limited to dismissal or transfer; where violations or infractions appear to be substantial in nature, 
the matter may be referred to the appropriate officials for criminal investigation and possible prosecution. 

 

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title     

_____________________________ 

Date 

These procedures are intended to serve as guidelines for the procurement of supplies, equipment, construction services and professional services for 
federally funded programs and activities.  The regulations related to conflict of interest and nepotism may be found at the Texas Government Code Chapter 
573, Texas Local Government Code Chapter 171, Uniform Grant Management Standards by Texas Comptroller, 24 CFR 570.489(g) &(h), and 2 CFR 200.318 



 
Fair Housing Policy 

 

In accordance with Fair Housing Act, the City of Texas City hereby adopts the following policy with respect to the 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing: 

 

1. The City of Texas City agrees to affirmatively further fair housing choice for all seven protected classes by: 
 

a. Analyzing and eliminating housing discrimination in the jurisdiction, 
b. Promoting fair housing choice for all persons. 
c. Providing opportunities for inclusive patterns of housing occupancy regardless of race, color, religion, 

sex, familial status, disability, and national origin. 
d. Promoting housing that is structurally accessible to, and usable by, all persons, particularly persons 

with disabilities. 
e. Fostering compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of the Fair Housing Act. 

2. The City of Texas City agrees to plan at least one activity during any federally assisted contract term to 
affirmatively further fair housing.  

 3.  The City of Texas City will introduce and pass a resolution adopting this policy. 

As officers and representatives of City of Texas City, we the undersigned have read and fully agree to this plan and 
become a party to the full implementation of this program.  

 

 

 

_____________________________  Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

Signature      Name, Title     

 

_____________________________ 

Date 

  

________________________________  Titilayo Smith, Fair Housing Administrator 

Signature     Name, Title 

 

________________________________ 

Date 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (9) (j)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Adopt Waiver Valuation Policy for General Land Office (GLO) grants that require Involuntary
Acquisitions
Submitted For: Dedrick Johnson, Mayor's Office 
Submitted By: Titilayo Smith, Community Development/ Grant Admin
Department: Mayor's Office

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and adopt a waiver valuation policy for the General Land Office (GLO) grants that
requires involuntary property acquisitions.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
When the City determines that an appraisal is unnecessary because the valuation problem is uncomplicated and
the anticipated value of the proposed acquisition is estimated at $10,000 or less, based on a review of available
data, the City can prepare a Waiver Valuation.  The City will utilize current tax year valuations as determined by
the Galveston Central Appraisal District to prepare Waiver Valuations.  The City will utilize said Waiver
Valuations to make initial offers to property owners for involuntary acquisitions on grant projects where the
estimated value of the acquisition is $10,000 or less. If the property owner rejects or counter-offers the initial
offer, the City can enter negotiations to obtain the necessary property acquisition.  The City will follow all HUD
guidelines for involuntary acquisitions when using waiver valuations
 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Mayor and the Director of Community Development & Grants
Administration that said policy be adopted by the Commission.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Policy Sample 
Resolution 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY 
WAIVER VALUATION POLICY FOR GRANT RELATED INVOLUNTARY ACQUISITIONS 

 

For General Land Office (GLO) grants that require involuntary acquisitions of property, the City of 

Texas City will follow the GLO CDBG Implementation Manual Chapter 8 Acquisition & Relocation 

steps, as well as the HUD guidance for acquisition regarding waiver valuations. 

The GLO CDBG Implementation Manual, Chapter 8 Acquisition & Relocation, 8.7 Involuntary 
Acquisition Process, Step 4, Determine Appraised Value of the Property, provides as follows:  

 

An appraisal of fair market value is required for property acquired under 
involuntary procedures unless the following (see 49 CFR 24.102(c)(2)):  

• If the property valuation is simple and the anticipated value of the 
proposed acquisition is $10,000 or less, no formal appraisal is required. 
The Subrecipient must prepare a waiver valuation and have a reasonable 
basis for the waiver valuation.  

• If the owner is donating the property and releases the 
acquiring/condemning authority from its obligation to appraise the property, 
no formal appraisal is required, 49 CFR § 24.102(c)(2); 

• If the value of the property exceeds $10,000, but is less than $25,000, GLO 
CDR will consider written requests for waiver of appraisal. 

The process of estimating value when an appraisal is determined to be 
unnecessary is considered a “waiver valuation.” 

The Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) provides guidelines for basic acquisition policies in 
§24.102, which reads in part as follows: 

(c) Appraisal, waiver thereof, and invitation to owner.  

(1)  Before the initiation of negotiations, the real property to be 
acquired shall be appraised, except as provided in §24.102 (c)(2), and the 
owner, or the owner's designated representative, shall be given an 
opportunity to accompany the appraiser during the appraiser's inspection 
of the property. 

(2)  An appraisal is not required if: 

(i) The owner is donating the property and releases the Agency from 
its obligation to appraise the property; or 

(ii) The Agency determines that an appraisal is unnecessary 
because the valuation problem is uncomplicated and the anticipated value 
of the proposed acquisition is estimated at $10,000 or less, based on a 
review of available data. 

(A) When an appraisal is determined to be unnecessary, the 
Agency shall prepare a waiver valuation. 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

(B) The person performing the waiver valuation must have sufficient 
understanding of the local real estate market to be qualified to make the 
waiver valuation. 

In accordance with the 49 CFR 24.102, the City of Texas City hereby adopts the following policy 
with respect to Waiver Valuations: 
 
When the City determines that an appraisal is unnecessary because the valuation problem is 
uncomplicated and the anticipated value of the proposed acquisition is estimated at $10,000 or 
less, based on a review of available data, the City can prepare a Waiver Valuation.  The City will 
utilize current tax year valuations as determined by the Galveston Central Appraisal District to 
prepare Waiver Valuations.  The City will utilize said Waiver Valuations to make initial offers to 
property owners for involuntary acquisitions on grant projects where the estimated value of the 
acquisition is $10,000 or less. If the property owner rejects or counter-offers the initial offer, the 
City can enter negotiations to obtain the necessary property acquisition.  The City will follow all 
HUD guidelines for involuntary acquisitions when using waiver valuations 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this _______ day of April, 2024. 

 
 
                                                                               
       Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
 
                                                                                     
City Secretary 
 
 
 (SEAL) 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-048 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A WAIVER VALUATION POLICY FOR 

GENERAL LAND OFFICE (GLO) GRANTS THAT REQUIRE 

INVOLUNTARY PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS; AND PROVIDING THAT 

THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER 

ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, when the City determines that an appraisal is unnecessary because the 

valuation problem is uncomplicated and the anticipated value of the proposed acquisition is 

estimated at $10,000.00 or less, based on a review of available data, the City can prepare a 

Waiver Valuation; and 

WHEREAS, the City will utilize current tax year valuations as determined by the 

Galveston Central Appraisal District to prepare Waiver Valuations; and 

WHEREAS, the City will utilize said Waiver Valuations to make initial offers to 

property owners for involuntary acquisitions on grant projects where the estimated value of the 

acquisition is $10,000.00 or less; and 

WHEREAS, if the property owner rejects or counter-offers the initial offer, the City can 

enter negotiations to obtain the necessary property acquisition.  The City will follow all HUD 

guidelines for involuntary acquisitions when using waiver valuations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, approves 

adopting a waiver valuation policy for General Land Office grants that require involuntary 

property acquisitions, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all intents and 

purposes. 

SECTION 2:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

 

                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 



 

 2 
L: Res 09-125 Adopt Library Policies 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

                                                     _______________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (10) (a)        
Meeting Date: 04/03/2024  
Abandonment - the entire 15’ wide alley adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of Block 135 of
Texas City Second Division
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the request from TCEDC for an ordinance to abandon the entire 15’ wide
alley adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of Block 135 of Texas City Second Division in Galveston
County. Located off of 6 th Avenue North between 4th Street North and 5th Street North.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The applicant is the Texas City Economic Development Corporation (TCEDC) which owns all of the
property adjacent to the alley being proposed for abandonment.  The entire 15’ wide alley is
adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of Block 135 of Texas City Second Division in
Galveston County and located off of 6th Avenue North between 4th Street North and 5th
Street North. 

The property is vacant and consists of all of nine (9) undersized lots and parts of two additional
undersized and unbuildable lots.   The lots owned by TCEDC are adjacent and contiguous to
each other and to the alley. The existing lots are considered undersized because they do not
meet the current zoning requirements for minimum width, length, or area. TCEDC seeks the
abandonment of this section of the alley so the existing vacant lots and alley can be
consolidated and re-subdivided by replat into four compliant residential lots for the
construction of new single-family residences in accordance with the Texas City Zoning
Ordinance. The site is zoned District A – Single Family Residential, which has minimum lot
size requirements of 50ft wide, 100ft deep, and 6,000 sq ft in area. The four re-platted lots will
meet or exceed these minimum requirements. 

The applicant provided letters of no objection from TNMP, CenterPoint, AT&T and Comcast.
Texas City Public Works and the Utilities Department reviewed the application for
abandonment of the alley and provided letters of no objection.  Allowing the abandonment of
specific streets and alleys creates the ability to consolidate tracts of land for more favorable
development opportunities.  
 

RECOMMENDATION
The Planning Board held a public hearing at its meeting on March 18, 2024, and then voted
unanimously (4-0) to recommend approval of the abandonment as requested by TCEDC. 

Staff have reviewed the site and the letters of no objection received from the utilities and offer no
objection to approval of the abandonment.  
 



Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report & Exhibits 
Ordinance 
Exhibit A 































ORDINANCE NO. 2024-12 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE AND ABANDON THE ENTIRE 15’ 

WIDE ALLEY ADJACENT TO LOT 11 AND LOTS 12 THRU 16 OF 

BLOCK 135 OF TEXAS CITY SECOND DIVISION IN GALVESTON 

COUNTY. LOCATED OFF OF 6TH AVENUE NORTH BETWEEN 4TH 

STREET NORTH AND 5TH STREET NORTH; DISPENSING WITH 

THE REQUIREMENT FOR READING THIS ORDINANCE ON 

THREE (3) SEPARATE DAYS; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 

ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 

PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant is the Texas City Economic Development Corporation 

(TCEDC) which owns all of the property adjacent to the alley being proposed for 

abandonment.  The entire 15’ wide alley is adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of Block 135 

of Texas City Second Division in Galveston County and located off of 6th Avenue North 

between 4th Street North and 5th Street North; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property is vacant and consists of all of nine (9) undersized lots and 

parts of two additional undersized and unbuildable lots.  The lots owned by TCEDC are adjacent 

and contiguous to each other and to the alley. The existing lots are considered undersized 

because they do not meet the current zoning requirements for minimum width, length, or area. 

TCEDC seeks the abandonment of this section of the alley so the existing vacant lots and alley 

can be consolidated and re-subdivided by replat into four compliant residential lots for the 

construction of new single-family residences in accordance with the Texas City Zoning 

Ordinance. The site is zoned District A – Single Family Residential, which has minimum lot 

size requirements of 50ft wide, 100ft deep, and 6,000 sq ft in area. The four re-platted lots will 

meet or exceed these minimum requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant provided letters of no objection from TNMP, CenterPoint, 

AT&T and Comcast. Texas City Public Works and the Utilities Department reviewed the 

application for abandonment of the alley and provided letters of no objection. Allowing the 

abandonment of specific streets and alleys creates the ability to consolidate tracts of land for 

more favorable development opportunities.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

  

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City finds it in the best 

interest of the City to abandon the entire 15’ wide alley adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of 

Block 135 of Texas City Second Division in Galveston County. Located off of 6th Avenue North 

between 4th Street North and 5th Street North legally described as: 

 

Being a 0.043 acre (1,875 Sq. Ft.) tract of land and being out of and a part of the 

North to South 15 foot Alley between Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of BLOCK 135 OF 

TEXAS CITY SECOND DIVISION, a subdivision in Galveston County, Texas, according 

to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 10, Page 33, of the Map Records of 

Galveston County, Texas, said 15 foot Alley being more fully described by metes and 



2 
 

 

bounds as follows;  

COMMENCING at a 5/8" iron rod found for the northeast corner of said Lot 12 of 

Block 135 being in the west right of way of 4th Street North (100' Right-of-Way) also being 

in the south line of a 20 foot Alley;  

THENCE S 87°36'02"' W along and with the south right of way line of said 20 foot 

Alley, and the north line of said Lot 12 of Block 135 a distance of 110.00 feet to a point for 

corner for the northeast corner of said 15 foot Alley of Block 135 OF TEXAS CITY  

SECOND DIVISION, and being the POINT OF BEGINNING and the northeast 

corner of the herein described tract;  

THENCE S 87°36'03 "W along and with the south right of way line of said 20 foot 

Alley, and the north line of said Block 135 a  

distance of 15 feet to a point for corner for the northwest corner of said 15 foot 

Alley, and the northeast corner of said Lot 11;  

THENCE S 02°23'58" E along and with the west line of 15 foot Alley and the east 

line of said Lot 11 a distance of 125.00 feet to a point for corner for the southwest corner of 

said 15 foot Alley being in the north right of way of 6th Avenue North (80'  

Right-of-Way);  

THENCE N 87°36'03 " E along and with said north right of way of 6th Avenue 

North (80' Right-of-Way) a distance of 15 feet to a point for corner for the southeast corner 

of said 15 foot Alley and southwest corner of said Lot 16;  

THENCE N 02°23'58" W along and with the east line of said 15 foot Alley and the 

west lines of said Lots 16 thru 12 a distance of 125.00' to the POINT OF BEGINNING of 

the tract herein described.  

Basis of Bearing: Grid North, Texas State Coordinate System NAD83, Texas South 

Central Zone.  

 

SECTION 2:  That the above-described property is hereby declared abandoned.  

 

SECTION 3: That the City of Texas City hereby retains unto itself any existing public 

and private utility easements on said property, if any.   

 

SECTION 4:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Quitclaim Deed, if 

requested, by any abutting property owners. 

 

SECTION 5:  That the Charter requirement for reading this Ordinance on three (3) 

separate days has been dispensed by a majority vote of the City Commission. 

 

SECTION 6:  That the City Secretary shall cause to be filed a certified copy of this 

Ordinance in the Real Property Records of Galveston County, Texas and present notification of 

the abandonment to the Galveston Central Appraisal District. 

 

SECTION 7:  That this Ordinance shall be passed and adopted on the date of its 

introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption. 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of April 2024. 

 

 

   

       ________________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

     City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

 

 




	Agenda
	AI 7177 Proclaim April 2024 Fair Housing Month
	       ATT_Proclamation Verbiage
	AI 7251 Proclaiming April Ninth as "409 Day" in Texas City
	AI 72547254
	       ATT_Staff Report
	2024�RECREATION Programs 
	Slide Number 2
	Summer Special Events (June – August) 
	Summer Camp
	Nessler Family Aquatic center 
	Autumn/Winter Special Events 

	AI 72597259
	       ATT_Staff Report
	Community Development
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report
	Community Development Team
	Community Development 2022-2023 Annual Report

	AI 7222 Heron's Landing Subdivision - Public Hearing - Heron's Landing Development, LLC requests approval of amendments to the Heron's Landing Planned Unit Development (PUD) District, Masterplan and Development Agreement
	       ATT_Staff Report for Herons Landing PUD Amendment
	       ATT_Heron's Landing Amended PUD Application
	       ATT_Heron's Landing Assignment of Dev Agmt - Signed
	       ATT_Heron'a Landing Original Land Plan
	       ATT_02-19-2024 PB Minutes
	       ATT_Amended and Restated Development Agreement - signed
	       ATT_3-5-24 ZC Minutes
	AI 7223 Heron's Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Zoning Approval - Consider and take action on the recommendation to approve amendments to the PUD Application, Masterplan, and Development Agreement for Heron’s Landing Subdivision
	       ATT_Staff Report for Herons Landing PUD Amendment
	       ATT_Herons Landing Amended PUD Application
	       ATT_Assignment of Development Agreement - signed - February 2024
	       ATT_Herons Landing Original Land Plan
	       ATT_02-19-2024 PB Minutes
	       ATT_Amended and Restated Development Agreement - signed
	       ATT_3-5-24 ZC Minutes
	AI 72557255
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 7200 Heron's Landing Section 3 - Galveston County Municipal Utility District 79 requests to Petition for Consent to Annex 8.933 acres of land from the District and Heron's Landing Development, LLC ("Heron's"), together with the Certificate of Authority of Heron's
	       ATT_Herons Sec 3 - Petition for Consent to Annex Land into MUD 79
	       ATT_Herons Sec 3 - Certificate of Authority
	       ATT_Herons Sec 3 - Survey Map
	       ATT_Resoln - SEc 3 - Consent to Annexation into MUD - Heron's Sec 3
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7238 Heron's Landing Section 4 - Consent to Annexation of Heron's Landing Section 4 into Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79
	       ATT_Attach 1 -  Pet for Consent to Annex Land - 8.933 acre
	       ATT_Attach 2 - Cert of Authority - Heron's
	       ATT_Attach 3 - 18-1002A SUR REV 02-12-2024-8.933 acres
	       ATT_Resoln - SEc 4 - Consent to Annexation into MUD - Heron's Sec 4
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7243 Bid # 2024-453 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7242 Consider and take action on a Resolution to approve the Amended and Restated Development Agreement between the City of Texas City and Heron's Landing Development, LLC
	       ATT_Amended and Restated Development Agreement - signed
	       ATT_PB 02-19-24 Staff Memo and Exhibits - Herons Landing Amendments
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7244  Bid No. 2024-452 Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7245 Long-term lease at Shoal Point
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7246 Bid # 2024-003 Delivered Hot and Warm Mix Asphalt Annual Contract
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI 7241 Adopt Policies and Procedures Regarding Civil Rights for Federally Assisted Programs & Activities
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Citizen Participation Plan-Amended
	PURPOSE
	HUD PROGRAMS
	ROLE, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND CONTACT INFORMATION
	PLANNING ACTIVITIES SUBJECT TO CPP
	DISPLACEMENT POLICY
	AVAILABILITY TO THE PUBLIC
	TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
	COMPLAINTS
	CDBG-MIT PUBLIC OUTREACH EFFORTS
	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES
	PUBLIC HEARING PROVISIONS (AS APPLICABLE)

	       ATT_Civil Rights Policies and Procedures
	       ATT_Resolution Draft
	       ATT_Updated policy
	AI 7253 Adopt Waiver Valuation Policy for General Land Office (GLO) grants that require Involuntary Acquisitions
	       ATT_Policy Sample
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7236 Abandonment - the entire 15’ wide alley adjacent to Lot 11 and Lots 12 thru 16 of Block 135 of Texas City Second Division
	       ATT_Staff Report and Exhibits
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Exhibit A

